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It is our firm commitment to
operate the Modaraba activities in
accordance with Islamic
Shariah with its true spirit

To employ the Modaraba funds in
best possible way and to promote
the human talents, to maximize
the profit for certificate holders.

It is our mission to constantly
endeavour for excellence in all
spheres of business activity,
maintain its eminent market
position, promote lasting
relationship with our customers
and other stakeholders, and
construct a durable and vibrant
Pakistan.

STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES

We believe a complete code of ethics is a prerequiste
for all Directors and employees of First Paramount
Modaraba. We endeavour to the philosophy behind the
code of ethics to carry out honestly activities assigned
to them. Our aim is to have highest standard of
excellence for the product and the betterment for all
those involved directly or indirectly with our Modaraba.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA
MANAGED BY: PARAMOUNT INVESTMENTS LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Magoon Chairman

Mr. Syed Wajih Hasan Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Nadeem lgbal Director

Mr. Abrar Ahmed Director

Mrs. Shahida Tanweer Director

Mr. Humayun Mazhar Qureshi Independent Director
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
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Mr. Abrar Ahmed Member

HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Humayun Mazhar Qureshi Chairman

Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Magoon Member

Mr. Nadeem Igbal Member
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER /| COMPANY SECRETARY
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CREDIT RATING
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Outlook Stable

By VIS Credit Rating Company Limited
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AUDITORS OF THE MODARABA
M/s Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. Chartered Accountants

AUDITORS OF THE MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANY
M/s. Hafizullah & Co. Chartered Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR
M/s Raja Qasit Nawaz, Advocates

BANKERS

Meezan Bank Limited

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited -Islamic Banking
Habib Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Suit # 107, 108, 1st Floor, P.E.C.H.S. Community Office Complex,
Block-2 PECHS, Shahrah-e-Quaiden, Karachi.

Phone: 34381037-38-52 & 34381101, Fax: 34534410

E-mail: info@fpm.com.pk

Web:; www.fpm.com.pk

SHARE REGISTRAR

THK ASSOCIATES (PVT) LTD.
32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2,
D.H.A Phase VII, Karachi 75500
Pakistan

UAN : +92 (021) 111-000-322
Tel :+92(021) 35310191-6

Web: www.thk.com.pk_
Email: sfc@thk.com.pk
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS OF FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA

The Directors of Paramount Investment Limited, Management Company of First Paramount Modaraba, are
pleased to present the duly audited financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2025.

For the year ended 30 June 2025, the Modaraba reported a pre-tax profit of Rs. 31,979,755 as compared to Rs.
40,659 604 in the prior year, representing a decline of 21%. MNet profit after tax was Rs. 23,898,201, lower by
Rs, 4,644,276 (16%) compared to last year. Earnings per Certificate stood at Rs. 1.73, as against Rs. 2.07 in the
preceding year.

Decline in profits from last year was primarily due to lesser economic activity in Qil & Gas Sector of the Country
which translated into slight decline in profits of FPM Petro Services - in house venture of the Modaraba. This
trend would not likely to continue this year. Overall, Country’s economy is in state of recovery with some
constant positive indicators. Howewver, it still requires some reforms to take effect before it can get out of
imminent threats.

During the year, the Modaraba made progress across multiple fronts:

=  FPM Petro Services sustained its role as a vital business division. Through portfolio realignment,
continuous addition of new products, and a focus on volume growth, the division continued to deliver
positive results, With increasing activity in the local hwdrocarbon exploration sector, the Board
anticipates further expansion of this business segment.

*  FPM AML-CHECK, the Modaraba's AML/CFT screening services division, significantly broadened its
customer base, adding several reputable domestic clients. Although not yet profitable, the division
achieved steady revenue growth and built a strong foundation for future financial contribution, The
Board expects this segment to generate meaningful returns for Certificate Holders in the coming
financial year.

* Paramount Compliance |Private) Limited (PCPL), a wholly owned subsidiary, is expected to further
strengthen AML/CFT business. Its UK-based arm, Complytech Global Limited, is actively exploring
international markets in South Asia, Southeast Asia, Africa, and the Middle East. Thaugh still in its early
phase, this initiative supports the Modaraba's long-term international expansion strategy and is aimed
at creating additional value for Certificate Holders.

= DigiEstate, another Project of the Modaraba, currently under SECP's Regulatory Sandbox, represents
the Modaraba’s strategic intent to adopt technology-driven business models. The Shariah-compliant
Asset Fractionalization Platform, once successfully tested and deploved, is expected to unlock
innovative investment opportunities and contribute meaningfully to profitability for the direct benefit
of Certificate Holders.
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As per revised Modaraba Regulations issued on 15 August 2022 by SECP, all deposit taking Modarabas were
required to have a minimum eguity of Rs. 500 million (FPM's is at 273.89 million) and a minimum credit rating
af “A-" (FFM's rating is BBB) in a period of 3 years. Regulations also restricted issuance of dividend to
Modaraba's certificate holders until compliance of these conditions are made. Accordingly, no dividend has
been declared or recommended for the year ended 30 June 2025,

Modaraba is actively pursuing to achleve minimum Equity threshold and minimum Credit Rating levels to
camply with the above requirements of the regulations which will also help in enhancing Modaraba's
businesses further. In this regard, two distinct proposals of Equity enhancement {duly approved by the Board
of Directors & Shariah Advizor of the Modaraba) have been submitted with the honourable Registrar.
Additionally, Modaraba has also filad an application with honourable Registrar Modaraba or for the grant of
extension in deadline for compliance in these regards.

The Board of Directors and the Management of Modaraba are fully committed to comply with the
requirements of these Regulations and meeting the criteria mentioned therain,

Financial Results;
Financial results are summarized as under:

Year ended 30 Year ended 30

Jlune, 2025 Jlune, 2024

{Amaount in {Amount in

Rupees) Rupeaes)
P‘n:n‘rt bEf'urE uther income and financial charges 50,784,772 59,461,248
Prnﬁrt hrEfan tax Elrld IE"qr 31 5?9 ?55 -Ill] 559 504

! i { { i
F"r::uﬂt aﬁer tax ' 23 3‘3‘3 201 23 542 477
Earnings per Certificate 1.73 2.07

Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance:
As reguired by the Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors are pleased to report that:

a)  The financial statements prepared by the management of the Modaraba present fairly its true state of
affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
bl Proper books of account of the Modaraba have been maintained.
] Appropriate accounting policles have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasenable and prudent judgment.
d} International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation of
financial statements.
] The system of internal control is sound and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
f} The Modaraba is financially sound and there is no reason whatsoever to doubt its ability to continue
as a going concern.
g} There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as detailed in
the listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange,
h]} The Board of Directors has total 7 directors including CEQ. The composition of the board is as follows:
«  Male: =3
* Female:
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Marme of Director

Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Magoon, Chairman

Syed Wajih Hassan, Chief Executive

tr. Madeem Igbal, Director

Mr. Abrar Ahmed, Director

Mrs. Shahida Tanweer, Director

Mr. Humayun Mazhar Qureshi, Independent Director

tAr. Habib Ahrmed Navaid, Independent Director

i) During the year under review, four (0d) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by
each director was as follows:

Mame of Director Meetings Eligibility Meeting Attended
tAr. Tanveer Ahmed Magoon, Chairman 4 4
Syed Wajih Hassan, Chief Executive 4 4
Mr. Nadeem Igbal, Director 4 4
Pdr. Abrar Ahmed, Director 4 4
PArs. Shahida Tanweer, Director 3 3
Mr. Humayun Mazhar Qureshi, Independent Director 4 4
Mir. Habib Ahmed Mavaid, Independent Directar 4 4

il During the year, four (04) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each member
was as follows:

Mame of Director Meetings Eligibility heeting Attended
ir. Hahib Ahmed Mavaid, Chairperson 4 4
Mr. Nadeem Igbal, Member 4 4
Mr. Abrar Ahmed, Member 4 4
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k]l During the year, one (01) HR meeting was held. Attendance by each member was as follows:

Mr. Humayun Mazhar Qureshi, Chairperson 1 1
Mr. Tanveser Ahmed Magoon, Member 1 1
Syed Wajih Hassan, Member 1 1
Mr. Madeem Ighal, Member 1 1

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its owverall responsibility for the Modaraba's risk management and internal contral
framework. These systems are regularly reviewed to ensure effectiveness in safeguarding assets, maintaining
reliable financial reporting, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Sustainability, Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DE&I)

The Board recognises the importance of embedding sustainability considerations, including environmental,
social and governance (ESG) factors, into the Modaraba's strategy and operations. In this regard, the Board
continues to review the Modaraba's exposure to sustainability-related risks and opportunities, covering
economic, social, regulatory and environmental dimensions, and remains committed to their effective
management and mitigation.

The Board also places emphasis on diversity, equity and inclusion {DE&I) by promoting faimess, inclusivity and
equal opportunity in governance and people-related practices. These principles, together with a strong focus
an integrity and accountability, contribute to stakeholder confidence and institutional credibility in the near
term, while supparting the Madaraba's resilience and growth over the longer horizon.

Gender Pay Gap

In accordance with 3ECP Circular No. 10 of 2024 dated April 17, 2024, the Board of Directors reaffirms its
cammitrment to equitable and merit-based employment practices, The Modaraba's remuneration framework
is structured to ensure that compensation is determined objectively, based on role, responsibilities,
experience, and performance, without any distinction on the basis of gender or other personal attributes.

The Modaraba continually strives to maintain a workplace where no gender pay gap exists and where all
employees are rewarded eguitably for thelr contributions,

Furthermore, in compliance with SECP Circular Mo. 7 of 2021, the Board has approved and implemented a
Gender Diversity Policy, underscoring its commitment to promoting diversity, inclusion, and equal opportunity
across the Modaraba,

Pattern of Certificate Holding
The pattern and categories of certificate holders as at 30 lune 2025 are presented in the Annual Report of the
hodaraba.

Director Remuneration
The remuneration of the director for attending meetings of the board or any Committes of the Board Is
determined under the Director’s Compensation Policy adopted by First Paramount Modaraba.
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Shariah Advisor’'s Report

The Modaraba continues to seek guldance from its Shariah Advisor, Mufti Farhan Faroog as and when required
to ensure full compliance with the Shariah Audit mechanism developed in consultation with Registrar
Madaraba.

External Auditors

On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has approved the re-appointment of the auditors
M/s. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co, Chartered Accountants as auditors for the year ending June 30, 2026,
subject to approval of the Registrar Modaraba.

Acknowledgement
The Management and the Board of Directors express their sincere gratitude to the Registrar Modaraba,
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, for their continued guidance and support.

The Board also extends its appreciation to the staff members of the Modaraba for their commitment, agility,
and dedication in the timely and successful completion of assigned responsibilities.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Paramount Investments Limited (PIL)
Managers of First Paramount Modaraba

Mr, Syed Wajih Hassan Mr, Tanveer Ahmed Magoon
Chief Executive Officer Chairman
Karachi

Dated: 01 October 2025
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
First Paramaount Modaraba [“the Modaraba®) managed by Paramount Investments Limited (the Managemant Company)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

The Management Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner;
1. The total member of Diractors are seven (07 ) as par the following:

a Mala: G
b, Femae: 1

2. The compostion of the Board is as follows:

_ hér. Humayun Mazhar Qureshi
Independent Directors | My, Habib Ahmed Navakd

Mdr. Tanwesr Ahmed Magoon
hir. Nadearn kybal

Non-Executive Direciors | Mr. Abrar Ahmed
hrs. Shahida Tanweaer

Executive Director hdr. Syed Wallh Hassan [Chief Executive Officer)

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is senrdng as a director on mone than seven listed companies, including the
Mansgement Company;

4,  The Management Company has prepared 2 code of conduct and has ensured thal appropriate sleps have been faken 1o
dissermsnate il throughout the Management Company along with iis supporting policies and procedures,

G, The Board has developed a vision J mission siatement, owerall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Managemsn
Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of parbiculars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or
updating Iz maimtained by the Management Company,

B. Al the powers of the Board hawe been duly exercised and decisions on relevant maliers have been taken by the Board!
shareholders as empowered by the ralevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The mestings of the Board were prozided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a Director elected by the Board for
this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Requlations with respect to freguency, recording
and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

B. The Board have a formal policy and transparant procedures for remuneration of Directors in accordance with the Act and
these Regulations;

0. Out of seven, three Directors mest the exemption criteria of minimum of 14 years of education and 15 vears of axpedenca on
the Boards of Esled companies, henca ane axemplt from Direclors’ lraining program. However, remaining direciors will aliain the
cerification in due cowrse;

10. The Board has approved appaintrment of Chiel Financial Oficer and Company Secratary, including their remuneralion and lerms
and conditions of employment and compled with relevant requirements of the Regulations,
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11.  Cheel Fenancial Officer and Chigl Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board;

12, The Board has formed commitiees comprising of members given balow:
& Audit Committee

Mames Designation held
Mr. Habib Ahmed Nawvaid Chairparson

Mr. Nadeem Igbal Member

Mr. Abrar Ahmed Member

b HR and Remuneration Committes

Names Designation hekd
Mr. Humayun Mazhar CQureshi Chairparson

Mr. Tanwaar Ahmead Magoon Membar

Mr. Madeam kybal Mambear

Mr. Syed Wajih Hasan Member

o Risk Management & Credit Committes

Mames Designation held
Mr. Tamveer Ahmed Magoon Chairparson

Mr. Habib Ahmed Navaid Meambar

Mr. Nadeem Igbal Member

13, The terms of reference of the aforesaid committess have been formed, documented and advised o the committes for
complance,

14, The frequency of mealings (guarledy | hall vearly | yearky] of the commillees wese as per following:
a) Audit Committee
Four quarterly meetings were hald during the financial year ended 30 June 2025
b} HR and Remuneration Committee
One meeting of HR and Remuneration Committes was held during the financial year anded 30 June 2025.

15. The Board has set up an effective infermal audit function {outsourced to a firm of chartered accountants) who are considered
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Management
Company,

16.  The statutory auditors of the Mansgement Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they and al their partners are in complance with Intermational Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
code of ethics &3 adopled by the Instiute of Chartered Accountanis of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm invalwed
in the audit are not a close relalive (spouse, parent, dependant and non-dependent children} of the Chief Executive Officer, Chied
Financial Officer, Head of Intemal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Management Comaany,
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17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance wilh the Act, these Regulatons or any other regulatory requiremenl and the audidors have confirmed that they hawe
obsersed IFAG guidelines in this regard;

18, We confirm that all requirerments of reguiations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 hawve been complsd with excepl of the following;

a) The two elected independent direciors have requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and experience to discharge and
execule thelr dulies competentty, as per applicable bws and regulations. As they Tulfill the necessary requirerments as per
applicable laws and regulations, hence, appointment of a third independent director is nol warranted

bl  Wa believad that this requiremesnt is nof mandalory as per Listed Companies Coda of Corporale Governance Regulabions
2019, Howevar, the Modaraba will review this matler at the trme of the next electon of Independent Directors and ensure

alignment with all applicable regulatory requirements.

19, Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6. 7, 8. 27, 32, 33, and 36 of the Regulalion are
given balow:

8. No | Requirement Explanation of Non-compliance et

Sustainability Committes:
As per requirements of the Code, the board should
ovarses the company's sustainability and Dhversity The Board will review the matler and ensure
equity and inclusicn (DE&I, adopting SECP's ESG compliance  with  the aforesadd  regulations,
Guidelines and ensuring policies for diversity and including consideration of the constitution of &
gender aquakity. They must manage sustainabity separate Sustainability Commitlea. FPM has a

1 rizks, including climate-related anes, and review Board approved Gender Diversity Policy In place, 104
performance requiarty. A dedicated committes, Appropriate disclosures will be included in the
including al least one female direclos, showld monitor | Dwectors’ Report reganding the assessmenl and
these efforts, enswe compliance, and repaort management of sustainabiity related risks and the
annualty. The direcior's report should cover rigk measures adopted to promote diversity, equily,
managarnent and DE&I initiatves. However, the and inchusion wilhin the Company.
board has not constituted such & committes as
required by the regulations.
Director Training:
A newly appointed director on the Board mgy The newly appoinied Director may acguire the

2 | acquire, the direciors fraining program cetification director ftreining program certificaion in due 19 ()
withirt a period of one year from the dale of U,
appoiniment as a director on the Boand,

Currantly. the Chisl Financial Officer is acting as

Qualification of Company Secretary: the Comgpany Secretary untl the pesition Is

3 The same parson shall not simultaneously hold office | permanently  filled. The Board will consider 94
of Chiaf Financial Officer and the Cormpany appoinimant of a permanent Company Secretary
Secretary of a listed company. tx ensure  compllance with the aforesaid

Regulation,

TANVEER AHMED MAGOON
Chairman
Karachi: October 01, 2025
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Independent Auditor's Review Report
To the certificate holders of First Paramount Modaraba
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of

Corporate Governance)] Regulations, 2018

Wa have reviewsd ihe enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporabe
Govemance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulationa) prepared by the Board of Dvectors of Paramount
investment Limited, the Management Company of First Paramount Modaraba (the Modaraba), for the year
endid June 30, mmwmwmwmmmmmmmﬁm

The responsibility for compliance with e Regulations s thal of the Board of Directors of B

Company. Our responsibility ks 1o review whather the Statemend of Compliance reflects the stalus of the

Modaraba's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if It doss not and to highlight any

non-comgliance with the requirements of the Regulations. & neview is limited primarily to inquinies of the

Modaraba's and the Managemen Company’s personnal and review of vanous documanis prepamed by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of cur audsl of the financial statements we are reguired 1o obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal conrol syelems suflicient 1o plan the audit and develop an effectve audit approach. We ame not
requined 1o consider whether the Board of Direclors’ statement on intemal contral covers all risks and controls
of 1o form an apinkon on the eflectiveness ol such inlamal controls, the Management Company’s corporate

govemnance procedunes and risks,

Tha Reguiations require the Managemeni Company to place before ihe Audil Commitbee, and upon
recommendation of the Audil Commitiee, place bafore the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its
redated party transactions. We are only required and have ensured complance of this reguiremant 1o the
exbtent of the approval of the relaled party transactions by tha Board of Directors wpon recommendation of the
Ausdit Commitios,

Based on our review, nothing has comee 1o our atlention which causas us o believe that the Sislement of
Compliance doas nol appropristely reflect the Managemant Company’s compliance, for and on behall of tha
hModaraba, in all material respects, with the requiremeants contained in the Regulations as applicable 1o the
Modaraba for the yaar ended June 30, 2025,

Furiher, wa highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirnments of the Regulations as reflected
in the: paragraph reference whem these are staled in the Statemend of Compliance:

1

5. Paragraph Description
Ho reference =

The number of indepandent directors appointed is less than the numbser prescribeed
i 61 by tho Regulations B i.e., at leasi bwo or 1/3 mambans of ihe Board, whichever s

highsar and is ol rounded Up 88 Ona,

Independant direciors shall b sabected from the databank as per section 166 of
the Companies Act, 2017. The Modaraba has appointed indepandent direclors bul
i 8(3) thair appointments ware mada from exbernal sources and nol from a dala bank
conbaining rames, addresses and gualifications of parsons who are eligible and
willing lo act as iIndapendant directors, maintained by any nstitute, body oF
as bes notified by the Commission.

Lt N —

Hussain Chauwdhury & Co.
Charlerad Accountants
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Annual riah Rewi m iah isor of Fir
Paramount Modaraba to the Board of directors

I have conducted the Sharish review of First Paramount Modaraba menaged by Paramount
Irvestments Limited Modaraba Company for the financial year ended June 30™ 2025, in accordance
with the provision of Sharlah governance Regulations, 2023 and guidelines |ssued by me. And in my
apinion:

1. The Modaraba has introduced a machantsm which has strengthened the Sharlah comgiance in
letter and spirit and the systems, procedures, policies and pool management mechanism adoptad
by the Modaraba are in ling with the Shariah principles and rules,

2. The affairs have been carried out in accordance with Shariah principdes and rules and relevant
Shariah opinions and guidelines issued By me from Lime 1o limea

3. 3. | have reviewed the financing, investment, and business docurments and procedures, and |
found that the transactions, procedures and relevant documentation are in accordance with
Shariah principles and rules,

4, Mo non-Shariah compliant income or penalty received during the pericd that requires charity.
Recommendations:

Based on the review, | recommend that FPA's management consider the following:
= Arrange regular training and development sessions for staff, managemant, and board
maembaars to enhance their understanding and skills in islamic finance.
= Review and update the COM manual as necessary to ensure its relevance and
effectivensess.
= Designate a specific account for charity funds to facilitate the trancfer of any future
realized amounts, even though no charity amounts were realized during the period
under rewiew,
Conclusion:
Bazed on the review of the company’s operations, transactions, related docsementation,
Shariah Compliance Officer's repor, internal Shariah audit report, and ta the best of my
knowdledge and according to the explanations provided te me, in my aginion, the affairs of
First Pararmount Modaraba have been conducted in accordance with Sharlah rules and
principles, as prescribed In Shariah Gowernance Regulations,

Muftl Muhammad Farhan Faroog
Shariah Advisor

ol First Pararmount Modaraba
Managed By Paramownt Imvestments Limited

Dated: Septermbeer 30, 2025
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Indepandent Assurance Report on Compliance
with the Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023

To the Board of Directors of First Paramount Modaraba

1. Introduction

We have undertsken & reasonable assurance angagameant that the Securities and Exchange Commiasion of
Pakistan (SECF) hae required in terms of its Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023 (the Regulations) —
Extarnal Shariah Audit of First Paramount Modaraba (the Modaraba) for assessing compliance of the
Modaraba's financial arrangements, conlracts, and transactions having Shariah implications with Shariah
principles for the year ended June 30, 2025. This engagemant was conducted by a multidisciplinany inmm
including assurance practitionans and independent Shanah scholar.

2. Applicable Criteria
The criteria for the assurance angagemant, against which the underdying subject matter {financial

arrangements, confracts, and fransactions having Shariah implications for the year ended June 30, 2028 is
assessed, comprise of the Shariah principles and rules, as defined in tha R&gﬁﬂm and meproduced nj

under!
I Legal and regulatory framework administersd by the Commisséon:
i,  Shariah standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Qrganization for lelamic Financial
Instiiutions (AACHFI), Bs notified by the Commission;
iii.  Islamic Financial Accounting Standards, developad by the Inetilute of Chafered Accountants of
Pakistan, a8 notified by the Commission;
k. Guidance and recomrmendations of the Sharlah advissry committes, as notified by Commission:

and
V. Approvvals, rulngs or proncuncernants of the Sharah supervisony board or the Shariah
advisor of tha Istamic financial instilution, in line with (] 12 (v) above.

The above criteria wers evaluated for their implications on the financial statements of the Modarata for the
year gnded June 30, 2025, which are annexed

3. Management's Responsibility for Shariah Compliance

Mansgemen! is responsible 0 ansure thal the financial arangements, contracis and transactions having
Shariah iImpiications, antared into by the First Paramowcnt Modaraba with ite custormers, other financial
instihsticns and stakeholders and related policies and procedures are, in substance and in their kegal farm, in
compliancs with the requirements of Shanah rules and principles, The management is also reaponsible for
daesign, implarmentation and maintenance of appropriate internal control procedures with respect 1o such
compliance and maintenance of relevant accounting records.

4. Our Independence and Quality Control

W have complied with the independence and other ethical requirernents of the Coda of Ethics for
Charared Accountants issund by the Institute of Charered Accountants of Pakistan, which is founded an
fundamesnilal principles of integrity, abjectivity, professional competence and dus care, confidentality and
prodessional bahanvior,

L
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The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 1 "Quality Control for Firms That Perdform Audits
and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, And Other Assurance and Related Services Engagemeants”
and accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and
procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements.

5.  Qur responsibility and summary of the work performed

Cr responsibdity in connection with this engagement is 1o express an opinion on compliance of tha
Modaraba's financial arrangemenis, contracts, and trangactions having Shariah implications with Shariah
principlas, in afl material respacts, for the year ended June 30, 2025 basad on the evidence wa have
obtained, We conducted our reasonable assurance engagament in accordance with Intermational Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), 'Assurance Engagemeants other than audits or reviews of
historical financial stalements’, issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That
standard requires thal we plan and parform this engagement to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the complianca of the Modaraba's financial arrangeaments, contracts, and transactions having Shariah
implications with the Shariah principles in all material respects,

The procedures selected by us for the engagement depended on our judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of malerial non-compliance with the Shariah principles. In making those risk assessmants, we
considered and lested the intemnal control relavant (o the Modaraba's compliance with the Shariah principles
in order io design procedures thal are appropnate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of
axprassing an opinien on the effectiveness of the Modaraba's internal control, We have designed and
performed necessary verification procedures on various financial arrangements, contracts and transactions
having Shariah implications are in compliance and relaled policies and procedures based on judgmeantal and
;ﬂumﬁn samples with regard to the compliance of Shariah principles, (Criteria specified in the paragraph
abova),

We believe that the evidences we have oblained through parferming our procedures were sufficient and
appropriate io provide a basis for our opinion.

6. Conclusion

Based on our reascnable assurance engagement, we repor that in our opinion, the Modaraba's financial
arrangements, coniracts and trensactions for the year ended June 30, 2025 are in compliance with tha
Shariah principles [criteria specified in the paragraph 2 above). in all maternial respects.

pmeffyon E—
Crowe in Chaudhury & Co.
Chartered ntants
Imran Shalkh

Cctober 6, 2025
Karachi
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Certificate holders of First Paramount Modaraba
Report on the Auwdil of the Unconsolidated financial siatemenis

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financal statemants of FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA (“the
Maodaraba”), which comgprisa the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the
unconsolidated atatement of profit or loss and comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statermant of
changes in equity, the unconsoldated siatement of cash flows for the yaar then anded, and notes o the
unconsclidated financial stalements, including & matarial accounting policies and ather explanatory iInformation,
and we state thal we have cbtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, wane necessary for the purposes of the audit,

In our cpinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given ta us, the
unconsdlidated staternent of financial position, the unconsolidated staterment of profit or loeas and
comprehensive income, the unconsofidated statement of changes in equily and the unconsolideted statement
of cash flows together with the notes forming par thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicabde in Pakistan and give the information reguired by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (3XXX] of 1980]), in the manner so required and respectively give a
true and fair view of the siate of the Modaraba’s affaire 8= at June 30, 2025 and of the profit and other
comprehensive income. the changes in aquity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Dpinion

We conducled our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15A5) a5 applicable in
Fakistan, Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilites for
the Audit of the: Unconsolidated financial staternents section of our report. We are independent of the
Modaraba and Modaraba Company (Paramount Investments Limiled) in accordance with the intemational
Ethics Standards Board for Accountanis 'Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants’ as adapted by the
Inatitute of Charered Accountants of Pakistan (the Coda) and we have fulfiled our other sthical responssbilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbiained is sufficient and appropriate
1o provide a basis for cur oplinion,

Emphasis of matier

We draw attention to nole 221 fo the financial statements, which slates that the Modaraba is non-compliant
with the credit rating and minimum equity requirements as stipulated in Modaraba Regulations 2021, As fully
disciosed in the aforesaid note, the extension period has lapsed on August 14, 2025 and a renewal application
has baen filed with the authosities which s under process. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Key Audit Matters

Fey audil matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our awdit
of the unconsolldated firencial statemants of the cwrment year, These matters were sddressed in the contesxt of
our sudit of the unconsolidated financial stalements as a whobe, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and we do
n provide a separate opindon on these matters.

ety
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Following are the Key audit matiers:
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MODARABA

LEERL +INMANE] rEERRLY

| 8. No | Key Audit Matter

| How the matter was addressed in our audit

01

Inceme from Murabaha financing

Modaraba eams income  from the
murabaha financing which is ils substantial
income source (Refer note 21.1 o the
unconsalidated financial  statements),
During the year, the Modaraba has
recagnized income of Rs. 13.23 million.

We identified income from the murabaha
financing as a key audit matter because of
the potential risk that income from the
murabaha financing iransactions may not
be accurately recorded, recognized in the
appropriate  period, and not

disclosed in the unconsolidated financial
slatements,

Cwr audit procedures In respect of this matter included
the following:

= Obtained an understanding. including the design and

implementation of internal controls over recording and
processing of murabaha income.

- Asgeszed the appropristensss of the Modaraba's

accounting policy Tor recording of incomea and in lie
with the requirements of applicable law, accounting
and reporting standards.

- Malched customer contracls with the income and
repayment schedule, performed recalculation on
sample basis to ensure that income s appropriately
recorded and also evaluated that these contracts were
appropriately  classified and recorded in the
appropriate accounting period.

- On sample basis, raced the installments received from

the underying records issued 1o contract holders and
applied substantive analytical procedures 1o deberming
any vanations.

- Evaluated the income accrued but not received is

appropriately classified as suspended income as per
applicable modaraba regulations.,

- Recalculated the uneamed portion of Incomsa and

checked the appropriate amount bas been recordad as
unearred income in labilities.

We also evaluated the adeguacy of the owverall
disclosures in the unconsolidatad financial statements in
respact of income from murabaha financing in
accordance with the requiremants of applicable financial

reporting framewark.

Stock in trade

{Refer note 27.1.2, amounting to Rs. 12.48
rmiillicon)

Stock-in-trade i3 a material balanoe in tha
financial  statements. The Modaraba
values its stock-in-irade at the lower of cost
and net realizable value [NRV), with cost
determined using the weighted average
methiod.

Cwur audit procedures include the following:

- We assessed the appropriateness of the Modaraba's
accounting policies relating o stock-in-trade valuation,
including the use of the weighled average method, for
compliance with applicable accounting standards and
Modaraba Regulations.

fadLr
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The application of the waighted average | - We tested the design and operating effectiveness of
method requires accurate recording of | conirols over the recording of stock ransactions and
purchase and consumplicn fransactions. (| valuation,

Further, determination of MNREY involves
judgment in assessing market condilions | - On a sample basis, we verified purchase costs to
and realizability. supporing  invoices and recalculated weighted
average cost 10 assess accuracy.

Given the significance of the balance and
involvement of estimation, this area was | - We evalualed the NRV assessmenl by reviewing
considered a key audit matier, subseguent sales prices and markel dala 1o ensura
that stock was not carmed above realizable value,

- We checked whether provisions for slow-moving or
obaclete stock were adequataly considerad.

We also evaluated the adequacy of the overall
disclosures in the unconsclidated financial statements.

Information other than the unconsolidated financial statements and Auditor's Report thereson

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the unconsclidated financial statements and our auditor's regor
thareon.

Qur opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance or conclusion theraon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsoclidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears fo be
materially misstated. If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard,

Responsibilities of management and Board of Directors of the modaraba company for the
unconsolidated financial statements

Management of the Modaraba Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
unconsolidated financial stalements in accordance with the accounting and reparting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requiremants of Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980 (XXX of 1980} and for such intermnal control a8 management of the Modaraba Company determines is
necassary to enable the preparation of unconsoelidaled financial statements ihat are free from material
misstaterment, whather due 10 fraud or arror.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management of the Modaraba Company is responsible
for assessing the Modaraba's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related
to going concern and wsing the going concem basis of accounting unless management of the Modaraba
Company either intends to liquidate the Modaraba or 10 cease operations, or has no realistic altermnative but to
do so,

Board of directors of the Modaraba Company are responsible for overseeing the Modaraba's financial reporting
Process.

L
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Auvditor's responsibilities for the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements

Our objectives are o oblain reasonable assurances aboul whather the unconsolidated financial statements as
a whole ane free from material missiatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes cur opinicn. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaranies that an awedit
conducted In accordance with 1SA% as applicable in Pakistan will abways detect a material misstatement when it
exisls. Misstalemenls can arise from frawd or emor and are consldered material i, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these unconsalidaled financial statements,

As part of an audit in sccordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakisian, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsalidated financial statemants,
whether due to fraud or ermor, design and perform awdit procedures responsive to those rsks. and
obtain audit evidence thal is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting @ material misstatement resulting fram fraud is higher than for one resulting from ermar, as
fraud n'lmr involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrida of
internal control;

b} Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant ta the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivenass of the Modaraba's internal controd;

c} Ewvaluale the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management of the Modaraba Company;

d} Conclude on the appropriatenass of the management of the Medaraba Company’s use of the gaing
concemn basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Modaraba's ability to
continue as a going concem. il we conclude that a material uncenainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the unconsclidated financial staternents or,
if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the awdit
evidence oblained up to the date of our auditor's repon. However, future events or conditions may
causa the Modaraba to cease to conlinue as a going concem; and

] Ewvaluate the overall presentation, siruciure and content of the unconsalidated financial statemeants,
including the disclosunes, and whather the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presantation.

We communicale with the board of directors of the Modaraba Company regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audil and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contral that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors of the Modaraba Company with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our indepandence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the board of direclors of the Modaraba Company, we delerming thosa
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit malters. We describe these matters in our auditor's repor unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in mdremely rare circumstances, we
determing that a matter should rot be communicated in our report because the adverss consequences of
doing 50 would reasonably be expecied 1o outweigh the public interest benefite of such communication,

LAt~
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Baszed on aur awdit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Modaraba Company in respect of the Modaraba as
required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Conirol) Ordinance, 1980 {XXxX]
af 19807;

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in
equily and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows togethar with the notes thereon lave been
dranwn up in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control)
Ordinance, 1280 (XXXI of 1280) and are in agresmeant with the books of accownt:

¢) business conducted, investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
by the Modaraba were in accordance with the objecis, terms and conditions of the Modaraba: and

d) no zakat was deductible al seurce under the Zekat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 {200 of 1980,

Other Matter

The unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 were audited by ancther firm of
charterad accountants, who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements vide thair report
dated October 4, 2024 ’

The engagemant partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Imran Shaikh,

£e | e
o e ] o
Cw in Chaudhury & Co,

Chartered ocuntants

Place: Karachi
bated: (12 OCT 2025

UDIN: ARZ02510207HRSIECTH
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FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCTAL POSITION
A% AT JUNE 30, 2035
2035 2034
ASSETS Note mmmme [RUPBES) —-—memem
MOM-CURRENT ASSETS
Fisesd) ssets 5 23,381,703 13,102,420
Intangibie assets & 144 147 305,524
Larg berm investment 7 9,980 9,c80
Murabaha finaring 8 19,403,574 31,562,963
Musharaka finanging a - 12,000,000
Loan to empiopees 10 231,503 385,503
Lareg tesmn depasits 'r,m ?IHHJ
43,078,607 57,654,490
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade debtors 11 262,671,367 175, 324,543
Stock in trade 12,475,079 24,102,663
Advances, prepayments ard other receivabies iz 34,340,715 23,126,655
Shart term mairabaha fnancing 13 4,791,668 .
Current maturity af non-ocurrent assets 14 41,883,622 SF.E38, 094
Shart term cenosit 15 250,800 1,863,934
Acerued prafit 16 70,332 1,532,576
Shart term investmant 17 23,434,916 28,308,660
Tamation - net 68,067,855 B4, 106 437
Cash and bank balances 18 18,210,311 || 47,115,806 |
466,203,665 -Iig-‘il'iilﬁl?.'-'
TOTAL ASSETS Ea]?] =:E£I-II3!5?
EGUITY AND LIABILITIES
CERTIFICATE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised certificate capital
40,000,000 {2024: £5,000,000) certficates of Rupess 10/- sach —ﬁ;%' 250,000,000
Essued, subseritied ard paid-up cartificate capial 19 —rm
Capital resanes 0 113,616,388 £9,718,187
RErer Nl reseiies 22,3932 458 23357 458
273,893,048 795,559 B40
LIABILITIES
WOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred Incame 21 3,362,988 F.ee2,534
Cartificates of musharaka 2 131,875,000 121,150, 600
135,237,088 129,112,634
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditars, aconeed and cther liabiigies 23 28,531,267 15,273,672
Current maburity of deferred income b1 5,367,360 7,179,248
Currant matarity of cerlifcates of musharaka 2 41,5060, 600 47,250,000
Cartificabe of miisharaka - matured ard payable 24 2,800,000 2, B0, O
Accrued profit on certficates of musharaka 25 3,331,368 3,514,290
Uinelaimsd prafit ditributons 18,620,240 16,729,685
100,150,235 B, 706, BAG
TOTAL LTABILITIES 235,388 223 2323819519
TOTAL BQUITY AND LIABILITIES 505,281,272 _ 473,814,367
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITHENTS 26

Thae annexed nobes from 1 o 42 farm an integral part of these uncorsclidated fnancial staterments,

For Paramount Investments Limited
(Management Company

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

_1?_


https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download

o = C34 A
First Paramaunt Madarala
{Ancislamic Financial Institution)

FIRST PARAMOUNT
MODARABA

AMERITINNEELT r RRELIT

FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
MNote meeeneee (RUpEEy) ====-==-

Income from trading operations 27 81,790,354 28,983,736
Income from muraizaha financing 211 13,232,119 14,065,787
Income from diminishing musharaka financing = 108,939
Income from musharaka financing 2,291,391 1,993,135

97,313,864 105,151,647
Administrative and operating expenses 28 (46,017 ,578) {45,534, 739)
Provision for doubtful recoveries - net (511,514) (155,660)
Other income 29 7,619,110 5,194,965

58,403,882 67,656,217
Financial charges 30 (22,145,656) {21,556,893)

36,258,226 46,099,324
Modaraba Management Company's remureration 31 (3,625823) (4,609,932)

32,632,403 41,489,392
Provision for Sindh Warkers' Welfare Fund (652,648) (829,788)
Profit before levy and taxation 31,979,755 40,659,604
Lewy 32 (711,691) (B621,877)
Profit before taxation 31,268,064 40,037,727
Taxation 32 (7,369,863) {11,495, 2507
Profit after taxation 23,898,201 28,542 477
Other comprehensive income = =
Total comprehensive income 23898201 28,542,477
Earnings per certificate - basic and diluted i3 1.73 207

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements,

For Paramount Investments Limited

{Management Company)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABS
UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR EMDED JUNE 30, 2025
2025 2024
Pt " e {m} -
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prafit before sy arad Lawation 31,979,755 A E59, 604
Adjustrsants Tar nom-cash ibers:
Depreciation and amortization 8 4,281,697 1,353,720
Gain on disposal of fleed assets (1,544,342) (367,952}
Provision for Sindh Waorkers' Welfare Fund 652,648 B, il
Fnandal charges o 22,145 856 21,556,853
Pronagacr for doubaliol recoverss - ret Si1,514 155,660
Bad dabts writhen off = 3,730,865
46,047,173 20,374,977
58,026,028 66,934,561
Decrease | (increase) in current assets
Hurabaha fnanorsg - et 23,950,873 15,103,057
Diminizhing Mushanaks fnanong - net - G5, i
Musharakn franding - mel 12,000,000 3, 06000, (O
Madaraha Francing - et = 1,822,314
Stack in trade 11,627,584 13,675,459
Trade debtors (87,345,384} (87,585,100
Adeances, prepayments and other receivabies (10,824,060} 14, &80, 500
Short berm depast 225,000 3,342, B
Receivabie from Al-burg Sssociates - 1,221,554
Shorl ferm ivesirmenl (2,126,347} {532,254
Apgred profit 1,462,244 52,036
Increxse | (decrease) bnowrrent liabilities
Credibors, acorwed and ather babilities 12,604,947 5,045,015
Daferred income (8,371 534} (3817 Bie)
Cash generabed from operations 15,229,351 Bl 437.515
Finandial charges paid {10,034} {52,836}
Recgwary from oas te emplavess 226,000 173,996
Lty and Incami tax padd (12,042,972} [20 542,035}
Met cash generated from operating activities 1,402,345 31,915,742
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of foed sk [i] (15,027 361} (3,634,427}
Trrvesstenent, in subisdiary - {9,580%
Sake procesd on disposals of fioed acsets p ! ], [0
Mot cash used in immesting activities (12,854,861} (2,554,407}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Certificates of Musharsks - mmsnce 12 35,700,000 26,375,000
Certfcates of Musharsks - redemption a2 {30, 725,000} (25,475,000}
Paid el matunesd certificate of musharaks - {2, 0050, 000
Prafit paid to cemificates of Misharaka holders (22,318,534} (21,803,415}
Prafit distribuind o Certificate holders (109,445} (505, 130}
Met cash used in financing activities (17,452,979 (28,258,585}
Nt [decrease) / increass in cath and cash agquivalants (28,905,495} TOR, TS0
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the waar 47,115,806 A6, 413,056
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1B 13,210,311 A7, 115 B0

Thaz anniexd notes from | oo 42 farm an integral part of thass uncansolidatad finandal satemants.

For Parsmount Investments Lmited
[Managemsnt Company)
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FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1  First Paramount Modaraba (“the Modaraba™) is a multi-purpose, perpetual and multi-dimensional
Modaraba floated under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980 and the rules framed there under and is managed by Paramount Investments Limited (the
Management Modaraba), a company Iincorporated in Pakistan under the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) on June 26, 1994, The Modaraba is listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited.

The registered office is situated at Suit No. 107- 108, First Floor, P.E.C.H.5. Community Office Complex,
Block 2, Shahrah-e-Quaideen, Karachi, in the province of Sindh.

The Modaraba is engaged in deployment of funds on murabaha, modaraba and musharaka arrangements
and its in-house venturas are:

(a) Electrical maintenance and troubleshooting services under the name of "FPM Solutions”;
{b) Chemical business under the name of "FPM Petro Services";

"The Modaraba has been assigned a credit rating of "BBB' for the long term and 'A-3" for the short term
by VIS Credit Rating Company.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1  Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, The accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan comprisa of;

«  The requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980, Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulation 2021 and directives
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP);

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Act 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

In case where requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) differ, the Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba Rules, 1981, the Modaraba Regulation, 2021 and directives issued by SECP shall prevail,

I '
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2.2 Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
measurement at fair value of certain financial instruments in accordance with the reguirements of IFRS 9
*Financial Insbrument’, wherever applicabla,

Parmissible Islamic financial products including murabaha, musharaka and modaraba have been used by
the Modaraba, the accounting and presentation of the same are in line with the substance of the
transactions and their accounting is limited to the extent of actual amount of facility utilized and mutually
agreed profit thereon. Accordingly, purchases, sales and musharaka profits [/ reserves are not reflected in
these unconsolidated financial statements.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Modaraba's
functional currency. All finandial Information presented in Pakistand Rupees has been rounded to the
nearest rupees, except otherwise stated.

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting
standards, as applicable in Pakistan, reguires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates underlving the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate |s revised if the revision affects only that
percd, or In the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
pencds. Information about the judgments made by the management In the application of the accounting
policies, that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in these annual unconsolidated
financial staterments, assumptions and estimation uncertainties with significant risk of material
adjustment to the carrying amount of asset and liabilities in the next year are described in the following
notes:

- Useful life and rate of depreciation of depreciable assets (refer note 4.1 & 5
- Provision for income taxes (refer note 4.18 & 32)
= Provision (refer note 4.21)

3. Changes in accounting standards and interpretations

i) New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for
the year ended June 30, 2025

The following amendments are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025, These amendments are
either not relevant to the Modaraba's operations or are not expected to have significant Impact on
the Modaraba's unconsolidated financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IFRS practice statement 2 -
Disclosure of accounting policies

I ::
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- Amendments to IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ -
Definition of accounting estimates

- Amendments to ‘IAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from
a single transaction.

- Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' - Onerous
Contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

ii) New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not effective
for the year ended June 30, 2025

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations
and the amendments are either not relevant to the Modaraba's operations or are not expected to
have significant impact on the Modaraba‘s financial statements other than certain additional
disclosures;

Effective from the
accounting period
beginning on or

after

Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Forelgn Exchange

Rates' - Clarification on how entity accounts when there is long term

lack of Exchangeability January 01, 2025
IFR5S 17 — Insurance Contracts January 01, 2026
Amendments IFRS 2 'Financial Instruments’ and IFRS 7 'Financial

instruments disclosures’ - Classification and measurement of financial

instruments January 01, 2026

IFRS 51 — General reqguirements for disclosure of sustainability — related financial information & IFRS
52 = Climate related disclosures are applicable as follows:

Fhase-I
Listed companies fulfilling any two criteria (i) to (i) below shall comply the Sustainability Disclosure
Standards from annual reporting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2025:

i) Annual turnover greater than Rs. 25 billion in last two consecutive financial years as per their
financial statements; or

i} Number of employees (permanent and contractual) greater than 1,000 as at last financial year-
end; or

i) Total assets greater than Rs. 12.5 billion as at last financial year-end.

kN |
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Phase-II
Listed companies fulfilling any two criteria (i) to (i) below shall comply the Sustainability Disclosure
Standards from annual reporting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2026:

i) Annual tumover greater than Rs. 12.5 billion in last two consecutive financial years as per theair
financial statements; or

i) Mumber of employess (permanaent and contractual) greater than 500 as at last financial year-end;
or

iii) Total assets greater than Rs. 6.25 billion as at last financial year-end.

Phase-III

Listed companies (other than those falling in Phase-I and Phase-11 above) and non-listed Public-
Interest-Companies which are licensed or registered with the Commission shall comply the
Sustainability Disclosure Standards from annual reporting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2027,

Other than the aforesaid amendments, IASE has also issued the following standards which have not
been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 18 - Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statemsnts

- IFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

&, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy information applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial
statements are set out below, These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented,
unless otherwise stated:

4.1 Fixed Assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairments, if any, Cost of fixed assets
consists of historical cost.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's cammying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to
the Modaraba and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized while normal replacements, repairs and maintenance are charged to unconsolidated statement
of profit and loss.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the reducing balance method at the rates
mentioned In note (5). Depreciation on additions and disposals during the year is charged from the date
asset is available for use while no depredation is charged from the date asset is disposed. When parts of
an iterm of asset have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate item in property and
equipment. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if
required.
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An item of fixed assets is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets are determined by comparing proceeds
with the carrying amount. These are taken to the unconsolidated statement of profit and loss acocount
currantly.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
Intangible assets are amortized under the reducing balance method at the rate of thirty percent per
annum,

The carrying values of intangible assebs are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Loans to employees

Loans to employess are granted by Modaraba for purchasing of wehicles or for other purposes, as
approved by the management on case-tp-case basis, Loans granted are initially recorded at fair value.
Subseqguent to initial recognition, these are stated at amortized cost.

Murabaha financing

Modaraba obtains an undertaking {promise to purchase) from the client and purchases the requested
assets / goods from third parties and takes possession of such goods § assets that are the subject matier
of murabaha arrangements. However, the Modaraba can appoint the client as its agent to purchase the
assets/goods on its behalf. Thereafter, it sells these goods [ assets to the dient at cost plus the profit
agreed upon in the promise. Murabaha sale is recorded at the invoiced amount and profit is recognized in
accordance with [FAS-1 {(Murabaha) to the extent of pro-rata porbon of sale price received as compared
to total agresd price. Profit on the portion of sale revenue not due for payment is deferred and
recognized as lability., Goods purchased by the Modaraba but remained unsold, with the Modaraba
constitute inventories, if any at reporting date.

Modaraba financing

Modaraba is a kind of partnership where one partner gives money to another for investing it in a
commercial enterprise. The investment comes from the first parner who is called “rabb-ul-mal”™ (here
FPM}, while the management and work are an exclusive responsibility of the other, who is called
“modarib” and the profits generated are shared in a predetermined ratio. Modaraba receivable are
reflected at principal amount.

Musharaka financing

Musharaka is an agreement between bwo or more parties to combine their assets, labour or liabilities for
the purpose of making profit. Modaraba is dealing in the following forms of Musharaka.

a) Diminishing musharaka

In diminishing musharaka based financing, the Modaraba enters into 2 Musharaka based on Shirkat-
ul=mulk (Joint arrangement) for financing an agreed share of fixed asset (e.g., house, land, plant or
machinery) with its customers and enters into yearly profit payments agreement for the utilization of
the Modaraba's Musharaka share by the customer. The customer with each rental payments also
purchases Modaraba's Musharaka share by paying additional amount and therefore becomes the sole
owner of the subject asset at the maturity of the diminishing musharaka.
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b) Musharaka financing

Modaraba enters into financing arangement with customers based on Shirkat-ul-agd (contractual
partnership) in customers’ operating business. Under this mechanism, the customer can withdraw
and return funds to the Modaraba subject to his running musharaka financing limit during the
musharaka year. The customer pays the provisional profit which is subject to final settlement basad
on the actual results of the business [ transaction.

4.7 Financial instruments

Investments and other financial assets
a) Classification

The Modaraba classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (sither through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

= those to be measured at amortized cost

The classification depends on the Modaraba's business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of profit
and loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on
the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will
depend on whether the Modaraba has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
Modaraba reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes,

b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Modaraba measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Modaraba’s business model for

managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Modaraba classifies its debt instruments:
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Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost, Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in statement of profit and loss and
presented in other income [ (other expenses) together with foreign exchange agains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses), interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and loss and recognized
in other income / (other expenses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
other income / (other expenses) and impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at PVTPL. A gain or
loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss and presented net within other income [/ (other expenses) in the period in which it
arises.

Equity instruments

The Modaraba subsequently measures all equity investments except for investment in subsidiary at fair
value for financial instruments guoted in an active market, the fair value corresponds to a market price
(level 1), For financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market, the fair value is determined
using valuation techniques including reference to recent arm’s length market transactions or transactions
imvalving financial instruments which are substantially the same (level 2), or discounted cash flow
analysis including, to the greatest possible extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data
(level 3).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Where the Modaraba’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCT are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.
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Fair value through profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in
other income [ (other expenses) in the unconsolidated statement of profit and loss as applicable.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in statement of profit and loss as other
income when the Modaraba's right to receive payments is established.

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FYTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is also included in statement of profit and loss.

i) Impairment of financial assets

The Modaraba assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortized cost and FYTOCL The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Modaraba applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach for measuring expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all financial assets, except in the case of calculation of
impairment provision on financial assets where the requirements of the Prudential Regulations for
Modaraba applies, it is recognized as higher of (on customer basis):

= the provision required under the Modaraba Regulations, 2021; and
e the provision required under IFRS 9 using the expected credit loss (ECL) model,

Loss allowance on advances and bank balances is measured at 12 months expected credit losses.
Since these assets are short term in nature, therefore no credit loss s expected on these balances.
The Modaraba is also not expecting a material impact on loan to employees and deposits.

i) De-recognition
a) Financial assets

The Modaraba derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred,
or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such derecognized financial assets
that is created or retained by the Modaraba is recognized as a separate asset or liability.
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b) Financial liabilities

The Modaraba derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its
uvnoonsolidated statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

ili) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the
unconsolidated financial statements when there i a legally enforceable right to set off and the
Modaraba intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities
simultaneously,

4.8 Investment in subsidiary company

Investments in subsidiaries is initially recognized at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, recoverable
amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any, and carrying amount of the
investment adjusted accordingly.

4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are camried in balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with banks in current and deposit accounts and
investments with short term maturity.

4.10 Stock in trade

Stock in trade is measured at lower of cost and net realizable value as at the reporting date. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

Met realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs
necessary to be incurred in order to make a sale. If the net realizable value is lower than the carrying
amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its net
realizable value. Provision is made in the unconsolidated financial statements for obsolete and slow-
moving stock in trade based on management estimate.

4,11 Trade debtors and other receivables
Trade debtors and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for
doubtful receivables based on review of outstanding amounts as per expected credit losses madel (ECL)
as required by IFRS 9 as at year end date.

4,12 Joint Operations (Musharaka arrangements)
The Modaraba has certain contractual arrangements with other participants to engage in joint activities,
where all significant operating and financial policies are predetermined by the participants, such that the
Musharik has no significant independence to pursue its own strategies,

The unconsolidated financial statements of the Modaraba include its prorata share of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses in joint operation and are accounted for on the basis of profit statements.,
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4.13 Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve represents profit set aside to comply with the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas
issued by the SECP vide S.R.0. 284(1)/2021 dated March 05, 2021. These Requlations require Modaraba
which is not compliant with minimum equity requirements as provided in the regulations, shall create
reserve fund to which shall credit an amount eguivalent to 100% of its annual after-tax profit till such
time the minimum eguity requirements are complied with. During the year, the Modaraba transferred
100% of its after-tax profit.

4.14 Certificates of musharaka

These are measured at prindpal amount on balance sheet date. The amount received by the modaraba
from Certificate of Investment holders is invested in the overall business activity of the modaraba on the
basis of full participation in the profit or koss of the modaraba.

The profit shall be shared by Certificate of Investment holders and certificate halders in accordance with
the agreed ratio. Profit on certificate of investment arrangement is recognized as financial expense in the
period In which they are incurred.,

Profit on Musharaka finance is accounted for on the basis of the projected rate of profit. The effect of
adjustments, If any, bebween actual rate and projected rate of profit s accounted for at the end of each
quarter after determination of the actual rate,

4.15 Creditors and other liabilities

Creditors and other liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and
subsequently measured at amortized cost.

4.16 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Modaraba assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets may be
impaired. If such indication existe, the carrying amounts of such assels are reviewed o assess whether
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amownts and the resulting impairment
Ioss is recognized in unconsolidated staterment of profit and loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value In use.

Wheare impairment loss subsequently reverses, the camrying amount of the asset is increased to lower of
revised recoverable amount or initial cost of asset less accumulated depreciation (if any) to date.
Reversal of impalrment loss Is recognized as income,

4.17 Revenue recognition

For each sale transaction, purchase order forms a contract between the Modaraba and a customer and
the goods to be delivered under that contract are the Modaraba's identified performance obligation, the
contract contains determined and allocated transaction price. The Modaraba satisfies a performance
obligation on delivery of goods to the customer and recognizes the revenue.

Revenue murabaha is recognized as per the requirements of the Islamic Financial Accounting Standards
(IFASs). Repayment schedule is agreed at the start. Payments are usually due over the period of contract
at different dates.

Profit / returm on deposits / investments is recognized on accrual basis.
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. Murabaha profit:

Profit on transactions under murabaha arrangements is recognized on a pro-rata basis taking into
account the elapsed duration for payment of murabaha amounts payable by the customer. Profit not due
for payment in the current year is deferred by accounting for uneamed murabaha income with
corresponding credit to deferred murabaha income which is recorded as a liability. The same is then
recognized as revenue on a time proportionate basis as and when the due dates approach for payment
of recoverable amounts by the customers.

- Musharaka management fee is recognized on accrual basis,

. Profit on musharaka financing is recognized on dedaration of profit by musharaka partners on
accrual basis,

. Realized capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the profit and loss
account on the date at which the transaction takes place.

- Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.
4.18 Taxation and levy
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year at the current rate of taxation after
taking into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. Tax charge for the
current year is determined in accordance with the prevalling laws for taxation. The charge for current tax
is calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The charge for the
current tax also includes adjustments relating to prior years, if necessary, arising from assessments
finalized during the year,

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the tax base
used in computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to
apply to the year when the differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Levy

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount
paid / payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income or any minimum tax which is not
adjustable against future income tax liability is classified as levy in the statement of profit and loss as
these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 12/IAS 37.
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Dperating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Modaraba that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Modaraba's other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Modaraba Management Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Board of Directors to
miake decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information is available, In review and evaluation performance process, the
business is considered as a single operating segment and the Modaraba's business s evaluated on an
overall basis other than musharaka arrangement with joint venture partner which is monitored

separately.

Segment results that are reported for review and performance evaluation include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items
comprise mainly corporate assets, administrative expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.

segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire Property and eguipment
and intangible assets other than goodwill,

Employee benefits
a) Defined contribution plan

The Modaraba operates approved funded contributory provident fund scheme for all its emplovess.
Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Modaraba and the employeas at the rate of 8.33%
percent per annum of the basic salary.

b) Compensated absences

The Modaraba accounts for the liability in respect of employees’ compensated absences in the year in
which they are earned.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Profit distributions and appropriations

Profit distributions are recognized as a liability in the unconsolidated financial statements in the year in
which these are approved. Transfers to statutory reserve and the mandatory appropriations as may be
required by law are recognized in the year to which these relate.

Certificate capital and earning per certificate

The Maodaraba presents basic and diluted eamings per certificate data for its ordinary certificates. Basic
eamings per certificate is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate
holders of the Modaraba by the weighted average number of certificates outstanding during the year.
Diluted eamings per certificate is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
certificate holders and the weighted average number of ordinary certificates outstanding for the effects
of all dilutive potential ordinary certificates.

ks |


https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download

Sy '_.:1 o Ty F J
Jirst Paramawnd Mlodaraba
{Anvislamic Financial Institution)

FIRST PARAMODUNT
MODARABA

AMENETIENARNT - RENELY

4.24 Contingencies

Contingencies are disclosed when the Modaraba has possible obligation that arises from past event and
whose existence will be confirmed only by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of entity, or a present obligation that arises from past event but is
nat recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of recourse embodying economic benefit will be
required to settle the obligation or, when amount of obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

4.25 Related party transactions
All related party transactions are carried out by the Company on arm's length basis,
4.26 Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables

Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
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2025 2024

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Mote rem=mnee (RUPSES) ==—===
Year ended June 30,
At beginning of the year 205,924 294,176
Amortization charge for the year (61,777) {88,252)
Carrying amount 144,147 205,924
As at Juna 30,
Cost 2,976,738 2,976,738
Accurmulated amartization {2,832,591) (2,770,814}
Carrying amount 144,147 205 924
Rate of amortization per annum %) 30 30

7. LOMG TERM INVESTMENT
In subsidiary- at cost
Imvestrnent in Paramount Compliance (Private) Limited 7.1 9,980 9,980

7.1 During the reporting period, the Modaraba has subscribed 998 ordinary shases of Paramount Comgliance (Private) Limited,
representing 99.8% of the share capital of Paramount Compliance (Private) Limited,

2025 2024
8  MURABAHA FINANCING - SECURED Note S e pus—
Considered goad 48,346,558 76,717,344
Considered douktful 256,661 2,115,568
Suspended income 8.7 (1,146,416) (1,255,341)
47,456,803 77,577,571
Less: Provision for doubtful recoveries 8.4 (256,661) (2,115,568)
47,200,142 75,462 003
Less: Current portion (27,796,568) (43,479 040)
Mon-curment portion 19,403,574 31,082 963

B.1 The Modaraba has sold goods wnder Murabaha arrangements whereby payment is deferred along with specified profit
margin. Murabaha sale is receivable in installment=. These amangements are secured by way of hypothecation | pledge of
stocks, mortgage of properties, demand promissory notes, change on assets and personal guarantees. The combined forced
sales value (FSV) of the underlying assets &s security amounts to Rs. 216.913 milion (2024: Rs, 373.947 millicn) in
aggregate,

B.2 These fadiities have various maturity dates up to Septernber 28, 2027. Effective profit rate on these arrangements ranges
from 10.5% to 15% (2024: 168% to 26%).

8.3 As fully explained in note 4.7 the Modaraba applies IFRS-9 Expected Credit Loss (ECL) modsl to evaleate the provisioning
impact.
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8.4 MMovement in provision for doubtful recoveries

DOpening balance

Charae for the yaar

Resversal made during the year
Write off during the year

Closing balance

8.5 Contractual installments receivable on Murabaha financing facilities:

2025

Owvardue

Due within omne year

Due after one year but within five years
Due after five years

2024

Oreerdus

Diue within ome pear

Due after one year buk withén five years
Due after five years

RAMOUNT
MOOARARA
2025 2024
-------- (Rupees) -------
2,115,568 2,368,324
- 367,425
(480, 680) (&40, 181)
(1,378,227) i
{1,858,907) (272, 756)
256,661 2,115,568
| Principal (| Profit Total |
-------- {Rupeas) ========
256,661 - 256,661
22,627,784 5,168,784 27,796,568
16,040,586 3,362,988 19,403,574
38925031 ___ 8531772 7,456,803
| Principal || Profit || Total |
———————- (Rupees) ----————-

2,115,568 - 2,115,568
36,339,792 7,139,248 43,479,040
22,584,921 9,308,042 31,962,963
61,040,281 16,537,290 77,577,571

B.6 The above except Tor overduee balance represents installments receivable by the Modaraba in future years in respect of
Murabaha financing facilitios given under long-term arrangements,

8.7 Suspended income
Opening balance
Reversal of suspended income
Transferred to suspense inoome
Wiite off during the year
Closing balance

D MUSHARAKA FINANCING - SECURED
Musharaka agresments for:

Considerad good:
Food products

Considered doubtful:
Books printing - 11
Less:Provision for doubtful recoverles

Less: Current porticn of musharaka financing

Note  =eseeee (Rupeas) =-----=-
1,255,341 T 652
21.1 (500,394)
21.1 967,255 4EE, 649
(575,786) )
klﬂiﬂ! I_.|255|341
9.1 - 12,000,000
- 1.2, 000, (00
9.2 13,949,054 13,9449, 054
o.4 - H
13,949,053 25,5949, 054
(13,949,054) _ (13,949,054)
z LE000.000
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2.1 The Modaraba has entersd into a Mesharaka arangement with Musharaka partner for distribution of food products
like milk, bisouwsts etc. The Modaraba's share of imestment is 30% of the total financing required by Musharaka
partner and profit on investment is shared in e ratio of 58535 (2024 65:35) bebwean Modaraba and Musharaka
partnar respectivaly. This financing is sacured by way of mortgage of property, The financing has been matured and
settled during the year.

9.2 During the preceding years, the Modaraba signed a Musharaks arrangemssnt amounting to Rs. 20 million for pristing
af 272,786 books with a Musharaka partneer. The profit on the investment is sharad in the ratio of 64,09:35.91 (2024
&8 09:15 491 between Modaraba and the Musharaka partner respectively. The financing s secured by way aof
markgage of immoveable property. This arrangement was fulfilled in prior years and the Modaraba is in prooess to
recover the principle and profit shafre as per agreamant, from the Musharalka parmnear.,

2.3 The forced sales value {F5v) of the underlying assets as security against musharaka finandng amaunts to Rs. 37,32
millicn (2024: R 105,14 millicn} in aggregate.

2.4 Mo provision has been recognized due o the availabdlity of the forced sale walue benefit of the collateral held as
security against financing. Furthermore, as fully explained in note 4.7 the Modaraba also applies Expected Crodit
Lo [(ECL) model to evaluste the provisioning impect. Consequently, &s per the ECL model ender IFRS 9, the
impairment impact is materially same o the provisioning requirements wnder Modaraba Regulations, 2021.

2025 2024
9.5 Contractual installments receivable on Musharaka financing facilities: ———-—-- {Rupees}) ------- =
D within ome year 13,949, 054 13,949,054
Dua after one year _ = L0000, 000
—t, 340,008 25933053
id. LOAN TO EMPLOYEES - SECURED
Loan to employees 369,503 505,503

Less: Current partion of loan to employess ;1;&&0&1 Ezin:mnf
—

1.1 This represents profit free personal loans provided Lo employess of Modaraba renging from Rs. 0.03 million to Rs, 0.5
millicn, These are repayable over a maximum period of 10 years and secured against thalr provident fund balamce,

2025 2024
i1. TRADE DEBTORS - UNSECURED Mabe m=mmemes (RUPBES] ====m===
Comsiderad good 262,671,367 175,324,983

Comsidered dowubtful 469,825
11.14 263,141,192 175,794,808
Less; Allwances Tor expsscted oredit oss

Balance as at July 1, 469,825 4,441,612

Recognized during the year - 428,416

Bad debts written off during the year - 4,400,203
469,825
ST L LS L,

Balance as at June 30, 469,825

11.1 Ageing analysis of trade debtors are as follows:

Mot yet dus 237,289,640 164,972 008
Upto 30 days 21,129,078 A, 290,308
31 to 90 days 2,396,903 6,112,191
4l days to 130 days - -
More than 180 days S % i 19 S § | A1t ¢ I
x5 L P S T
iz. ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVARLES
Advance against purchase of Stock 2,112,199 -
Advance against expenses 4,306,029 114,914
Advance againat salaries - 58,000
Shisrl-term prepayments 686,534 704,354
Sales tax receivable #,087,851 5,014,484
D frarm AML project 12.1 15,637,114 14,754,723
Otfver receivables i2.2 3,510,988 1,580,170
- T e L P N T s N


https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download

'._l = I 2 o -Ir
Fivst Paramaunt Vaodaraba
(Andslamic Financial Institution)

FIRST PARAMOUNT
MODARABA

12,1 This includes operaticnal expenses borne by the Modaraba on behalf of the AML project, The Modaraba has entered
into an arrangement with an individual to engage in a business segment under the name and style of “FPM AML/CFT
Solutions," Serving the corporale and financial sector. The Modaraba is responsible for maneging the project's
operations as the "Modanbh” and may temporarity advance upba Rs. 16 million to the project, while the other party is
responsible for investing in the project as the "Rabb-ul-Maal.” The net profit from this conbract |s shared babween the
Modarib and Rabb-wl-Maad in a ratio of &0:40 respectively. The movement in balance due to ¢ (from} AML project s

as wnder:
2025 2024
mmammans {Rupees)
Dpening balkance 14,754,723 8,693,703
Add: Payments made during the year 18,387,571 23,242,478
Less: Recavered from the project {17,505, 180) {17,181,458)
Closing balance 15553?‘114 14‘?54i?23

The AML project has consistently Incurred losses since s inception. In adherence to the Islamic princple of Modarabs
financing, these losses shall be borme by the Rabb-ul-Maal, Consequently, no loss heve been recorded in the
Modaraba’s books.

122 This includes Rs. 1.2 milbon deducted directly fram the bank sceouwnt of the Modaraba on the instruction of the

Federal Board of Revenue (FER) vide letter no. CIRSZone-1/CRTOMKHL2016/2544 dated December 15, 2006 on
acoount of non deduction of withholding tax. (refer Mote 26).

2025 2024

13, SHORT TERM MURABAHA FINANCIMNG - SECURED ———————- (Rupees) ———
Considersd aood 4,791,668 -
Consdersd doukbtful - -
4,791,668 -
Less; Provision for doubtful recoveries = =
— a

13.1 Murnbaha sale price s receivable o installments, Effective profit rate an these arrangements ranges from 15%
(2024 11% to 149%) per annum recedvable on agreed terms, These financing are secured by way of mortgage of
properties, hypothecation of goods and demand promissory notes, The Torced sabes value (FSV) of the undertying
assets &s security amounts o Rs, 21996 million (2024: Nl in aggregate.

2025 2024
14, CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS Mok ———————— (Rupees) —————
Current poition of murabaha financing B 27,796,568 43,470 040
Current partion of musharaka finsncng o 13,949,054 13,349,054
Current portion of loans to employeess 10 138, D00 210,000
31 622 5?’,5&09-1
15. SHORT-TERM DEPOSIT
Deposits 2,738,994 2,063,994
Less: Provision for doubtful recoveries 15.1 (2,482 194) {1, 100, 000
—e 00 LBGIG0E
15.1 Movemant in provision for doubtful recovaries
Balance as at July 01, 1,100,000 x
Charge for the year 1,382,194 1, 1063, 000
Balanoe as at June 30, ﬂm 1I1mlu|:||:|

I 4


https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download

Finst E.P{':‘-TH-HL{H.HI & f ff_m'.rﬁ vt el
(Amislamic Financial Institution)

FIRST PARAMOUNT
MODARABA
2025 2024
16.  ACCRUED PROFIT Note —mmmme- (Rupees) —-mmm-
Profit receivabde on musharaka financing = 49377
Profit receivable on bank deposits 70,332 SH3,199
70,332 1,532,576

17, SHORT TERM INVESTHMEMNT

At fair value through profit or loss

Pak Quatar-daily dividend plam 17.1 23,434,916 21,308, 659

17.1 Mowerment in short term investmeant

Opening balance 21,308,669 20,776,415
addd: Purchase during the yesar - -
Add: Dividend Reimested {Dividend-net of tax) 2,126,247 3,532,254
Less: Redemption during the year = {2,000, 000)
Closing balance Hds_-i‘#li 21|M55ﬁl

This represants investment in a mutual fund comprising 234,349, 16 wnits (2024: 213,087 units) at MAY of Rs. 100 per
umit (2024 R=. 100 per unat).

2025 2024
18. CASH AND BANK BALAMCES Mote =i - [Rupees) —-—---—-
Cash in hand 64,533 Br 672
Cash at banks
- Current acoounts
- State Bamk of Pakistan 31,318 34,188
- Other banks i8.1 8,746,725 9,005,038
- Deposit accounts 1B.2 & 18.3 5,367,735 37 508 008

18,210,311 47,115 806

18.1 This inclede Rs. 0.213 mallicn { 2024: Rs, 00563 millkon) in respect of FPM-AML project. (refer Mote 12.1).

18.2 This ncudes Rs. 3.012 million (20249 R=. 3166 milion) in respect of Redemplion Reserve Fund established on
acoount of Certificate of Musharaka.

18.3 These carries profit rate in respect of deposit accounts ranging from 4.5% to 9.2% (2024: 11.01% to 21.55%) per
AN,

19. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

2025 2024 2025 2023
{Mumber of certificates) ————— {Rupees) ———----n
Certificates of Rupees 10 sach fully paid
11,989,930 11,989,930 in cash, 119,899,208 119,&90 298
1,798,490 1,798,490 Bonus certificales issued of Rupees 10 17,984,895 17,984 895
13.7 420 13 7HA 4. 137 1 1317 1

19.1  As at June 30, 2025, Paramount Investments Limited {the Management Comnpany) holds 14.26% (2024: 14.26%)
representing 1,065,768 certificates (2024: 1,065,768 certificates) of the Modaraba.
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2025 2024
20, CAPITAL RESERVES Nota ~  seeseees [Rupaas) ========
Statutory reserve 20.1 111,681,128 B7,783,027
Marger resends 20.2 1,935 160 1,435,160
=il 616388 59715187

20,1  Stabutory reserve represents peofit set aside o comply with the Modaraba Reguiations issued by the SECP wide S.R.O.
28412021 dabted March 05, 2021, These Regulations reguire Modaraba which is not compliant with minimoem eguity
recparements as provided in the regulations, shall create reseree fund to which shall oredit an amount ecuevalent to 100%
of of its annual after-tax profit till such time the minifum equity reguirements are complied with. During the year, the
Modaraba transferred 100% of its after ax profits amounting to Rs, 23,69 million {2024: Rs, 28.54 million},

20,2 In accordance with decisson of the Honourable High Court of Sendh a5 on Decernber OF, 2004, the First National Modaraba
{FNM) was merged with the Modaraba, The Modaraba received a sum of Rs, 10,57 million from FNM, includeng Rs. 8,66
millices a5 a certilficate cagatal and R, 1.94 million &5 capital resame,

2025 2024
21.  DEFERRED INCOME Motbe B . ITT Ty e
Deferred murabaha inoosme 21.1 B, 730,348 15,101,882
8,730,348 15,101,882
Less: Current maturity of deferred income {5,367, 360) (7, 13%,248)
AL
21.1 Deferred murabaha income
Balance as at 01 July 15,101,882 18,919,498
Add: Deferred incorme for the year 7,327,446 10,736,820
Less: Income recognized during the year (13,232,119) {14,065, 7877
Less: Transfarred to suspense income (967,255) (458,640}
Add: Reversal of suspended income 500,394 -
Balanoe as al 30 Juna 5?53‘! 15i101|352
22. CERTIFICATES OF MUSHARAKA
Batance as at Juby 01, 168, 400,000 167,500,000
Issued during the year 35,700,000 26,375,000
Redeemed during the vear (30,725 0040) (25,475,000
173,375,000 6B A0, 000
Less: current maturiby of certficates of musharaka {41,500, 000 (47, 250,000
Balance as at June 30, 121,150,000

22,1 In accordance with the Modarabas Reguiations 2021 (the “Regulations") issued by the SECP through S.R.0. 28412021
dated March 5, 2021, the awthority to ssue Certificates of Musharalka (COM} by 2 Modaraba will be automatically
aupendad i the Modsraba becomes non-compliant with any of the condiions outlined in Regulation 19 of the
Regulations. However, existing Modarabas with valid permissions to issue COM, which are non-compliant, are reguired b
achéeve compliance within one year of the effective date of these regulations provided that, during this one-year interm
pericd, the total COM of such Modarasbas will be cappad at the existing bevel, 2., the sulstanding Balance as af the date
the requlations came Into force,

On August 15, 2022, the SECP, via 5.R.0. 1547(I)/2022, amended these regulations, These amendrments extend the
compliance period o three years in cases of non-compdiance with the conditions outlined in Regulation 17(1) subject to
certain conditions. The Modaraba, based on legal advice, understands that the compliance period for Regulation 19 is also
considered as extended to 3 years given the conditions of Regulation 19 are that of Regulation 17(1).

A5 the extended timelines has also lapsed on August 14, 2025 and the Modaraba is non-compliant with the credit rating
and mémimam egquety reguirements as cutiined In Regulations 17 and 19, the Modaraba has formally filed renewal
application with the Registrar Modaraba. Based on the comespondence with the Regulator, the management is confident
that the renewal application would be accepted in Tavor af Modaraba.

I -1
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22.2 These certificates have different denominaticns and are repayable within three months to five years, The expected share of
profit on these cedificates ranges from 9.5% to 14.5% (2024: 8.5% to 14,5%) per anoem.

22.3 A Redemption Reserve Fund is esteblished on account of Certificate of Musharaka (refer Mobe 17 & 18.2).

2025 2024

23. CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES se==ere= (RUPBES) -====-==
Due to asseciated undertakings 105,019 286,837
Creditors 18,080,085 4,314,680
Srcrued expenses 1,973,269 1,843,534
Sincth workers' welfare fund 3,162,840 2,510,191
WWithhelding mcome tax 3,117,495 3,287,505
Share of modarib payable under FPM patro - 1,015,687
Payable to provident fund 36,127 -
Others 2,056,432 1,115,238

- 5 W S = W v

24, CERTIFICATE OF MUSHARAKA - MATURED AND PAYABLE

This represents amount payable to legal successors of musharaka holders which B due but unclaimed due o pending
docusmentation on death of the reapective musharaka holders,

2025 2024
5. ACCRUED PROFIT ON CERTIFICATES OF MUSHARAKA —--— [Rupeégs) —-—-
Badance as at Juby 01, 3,514, 280 3,613,638
Acdd: Accrued during the year 22,135,622 21,504,057
Lesss: Paich during the year {22,318,534) (21,603,415)
Bakance a5 at Jure 30, —_33a3es _ Jniage0

26. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITHMENTS
al) Contingencies

Mame of the court, agency or | Description of the proceedings and relief
authority sought

i Commissioner Inland Bevenue  During the prior year, the Sindh Revenue Board  Sindh Revenoe July 19, 2019
[SRB} has raised accurmulated demand of Rs. Board and
206 milion vide orders 629 of 201%, 632 of Modaraba
2019, 635 of 2019 and 636 of 2019 daked July
18, 2019, July 23, 2019, July 25, 2019 and July
28, 201%, on the grounds that the Modaraba's
activities Tall under tariffs 9809, 9822, 98222
and 9822.3 of Second Schedule of the Singh
Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 {the Act).The
Assistant  Commissioner of Sindh  Renenue
Board (SRE) after providing opportunity  of
besmg feeard o Modaraba, issued order vide 915
dated Apml 27, H23, whersby the
Commissionar dembnded the sales Bx and
penalty amounting to Rs. 14,31 mélion and 0.63
million respectively for the tax periods Juty 2011
to Jumse 2017 on account of non-chargeability of
Sindh Sales Tax against sendces, The modaraba
hes filed appeal before the Commissiones
Appeals 5RB and did not record any prowvision
for this matter, as their tax advisor = confident
that the pending appeal will b2 decided in the
modaraba's favour,

I >

Principle Parties | Dabe institubed
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Nama of tha court, agency or | Description of the proceedings and rellef | 0 oovs | pate instituted

authority sought
i Commissicnar Infand Revenue  The Modaraba received a show cause notice C,  Federal Board of
Mo, DCIRSUni-05/R-CTE-25-098 3/ Zone- Raveniie and April ZB, 2025

IJCTOMKHI 48 dated  April 28, 2025 wnder Modaraba
section 11(E) of the Sales Tax Act 1990,

relating to input tEx adjiustrents claimed during

the tax perod from July 2021 to March 2025,

The Madaraba submétted written replies sgainst
the show cause notice, Subsequently, the CIR
passed an order claiming the ingut tax of Rs.
18.62 million along with penalty of Rs. 1862
milion under section 33(11) and a defaust
surcharge (b be calculated &t the Lirme of final

paymaent],

The Modaraba, has Ffled an appeal under
section 45-B of the Sales Tax Act 19590 against
the Order-in-0Original 162 dated June 1B, 2025,
Considenng the factual postion and based on
the advice of the tax counsel, the management
is confident of & positive outcome and hence no
accrual has been recorded in the books of
Bocounts.

Hame of the court, sgancy or | Duscription of the procesdings s relef | oo piees | Dats Insiitubed

authority sought
jiii Commissioner Inland Fevemse  An amount of Bs. 1.2 million has been deducted  Sindh Revenoe o ber 15
from the bank account of the Modaraba on the Board and 2016 '

instructions of the FEBR vide letter #CIR/Zone- Modaraba
LCRTOMKhI2016/2544 dated December 15,
2016 on account of non  deduction of
withholding tax. The matber wes fEken o
Commissioner Inland Revonue (Appeal TID,
Karachi who remanded back the case to the
afficer with directions to provide an oppartunity
of being heard to the Appellant, Tha worthy
Cormmissiongr in e Order vide no. 2672017
dated Janwary 26, 2017 has remanded the
makter to the revenue. Management is confident
that the deducted amount will be refunded,
therefore, no expense has been booked in this

regasd,
2025 2024
by Commitments Nobe sommmmes [RLUpEES) —memnnmn
Letter of Guarantess - 124 300
7. INCOME FROM TRADING OPERATIONS
Income from:
= FPM Petro 27.1 81,790,354 Bb,834,917
- FFM Solution 27.2 = 2,058 BED
EIEE Elgﬂai?ﬂﬁ

-k |
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2025 2024

2¥.1 Income from FPM petro Hobe {Rupaas) -=-=-- -
Revenue - net 2711 580,407,261 548,977,083
Less: Direct costs
Cost of sales 27.1.2 425,083,257 410,616,724
Transportation charges 27,507,815 3,580,888
Labouwr charges 1,582,840 1,926,712
Laly testing 72850
Share of modarik i

— 498,616,907

Z¥.1.1 This represents revenwe (net of sales tax) generated from chemical Business of FPM Petro Sendces. Sales tax charged on
sales tax Invoices issued during the year in aggregate amountad to Rs, 104.26 milkon (2024: Rs. 99.44 million).

2025 2024
27.1.2 Cost of sales {Rupggs) ---=---=
DOpening stock 24,102,663 37,779,122
Purchases 413,455,673 306,940,265
Less: closing stock (12,475,079} (24102 663)
Cost of sales 425,083,257 410816724
i7.2 Income from FPM sclution
Revenue - net = 3,974,177
Less: cost of revenue = 1,875,308
= 2038858

27,21 This represents revenue (net of Sindh Sales Tax on Services) generated from project poser solubion business of FPM
Solutions, This mcludes moome from Service Level Agreements (54A) entered into by FPM Solutions wath the client o
provide services in respect of stand by generators, UPS and other power back up solutions. Sindh sales thx on servioes
charged om sales tax involoes (sswed during the year In aggregabe amounbed to Ml (2024: Rs. 0.424 milion).

2025 2024
28. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES Mote (Rupees) ----ne-

Salaries, allowances and benefits 28.1 20,836,502 18,859, 762
Uitilities 1,759,309 2,338,144
Repairs and maimtenance G7F7, 296 503,493
Takafil 1,602,097 609,676
Rent, rates and taxes 28.2 3,133,236 2.597.253
Travelling and comveyance 4,201,956 5057048
Communications 794 843 1,209,488
Printing and stationery 306,989 407,950
Auditors’ remuneration 28.3 1,047,622 B40,000
Legal and professianal 865,110 427,360
Fees and subscriptions 4,874,436 4. 809,236
Bad debts written-off = 3,730,868
Stock in trade- written off = 113,480
Mews papers and pariodicals 11,260 5, 560
Advertiserment and publicity 72,000 36,000
Depreciation and amdortization 4,281,697 2,369,720
Lo o disposal of foesd aotet s =
Others 1,463,225 1,524,796

iﬁ!ﬂ:ﬂl ‘Eliaslﬁﬂ

28,1 Salaries, allowances and benefits include 067 milion Rs (2024: Rs. 064 millien) on account of the Modaraba's
coniributicn 1o the stalf provident fund.
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28.2 This incluedes Rs, 1.13 millicn charge by director (2024: Rs. 1.05 millice} in respect of rent for office premises,

2025 2024

28.3 Auditors’ remuneration semeasas [RUPBES) ===csm=x

Statutory audit fee 504,815 504,815

Half yearly review fee 118,148 118,148

Certification fee 102,037 102,037

Anmual shariab sudit fee 130,000 =

Consolidation fee 115,000 115,000

saT S— > '

e h047,622 830,000

29, OTHER INCOME

Financial assets - shariah compliant

Frofit on bank deposits 2,218 006 3,681,168

Dividend inoome 2 846,762 4,145,849

Other 1,010,000 -

MNon-financial assets

Others 1,544,342 367,952

7,619,110 8,194,969

20. FINANCIAL CHARGES

Frofit on certificabes of musharaka 22,135,622 21,504,057

Bank charges 10,034 52,836

Izlldﬁéﬁﬁ IIISEEIEEIEI-

31. MODARABA COMPANY'S MAMAGEMEMNT FEE

The Management Company is entitled to a remuneration for services rendered to the Modaraba under the provisions
of the Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 wpto a8 maximom of 10%: per
annum of the annual net profits of the Modaraba. The fee for the year ended June 30, 2025 has been recognized at
10% {2024: 10%:) of profit for the year.

2025 2024

32, LEVY AND TAXATION Note === (RUPEES) ~--—===
Levy 32.1 711,691 621,877
Taxation 322 7,369,863 11,445,250

8,081,554 12,117,127

32.1 This represents portion of final tBx paid under Income Tax Ordimance (ITO, 2001), representing levy in terms of
requirements of IFRIC 21/1AS 37,

32.2 TAXATION 2025 2024
Mobe =  =eeeeees {(Rupees) ======= -
Current tax 7,531,912 10,881,326
Price year tax (162,049) 513,924
7,369,863 11,4495 250
Deferred tax 32.3 -

7,369,863 11,495,250

I -
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2025 2024
Relationship between accounting profit and tax Note R {(Rupees) -------
expense
Accoumting profit 31,268,064 40,037,727
Tax at applicable rate of 29% 9,067,739 11,610,941
Effect of:
Accelerated depreciation 67,374 24,202
Prenvision for expected credit (oss 35,609 35,581
Priar year (162,049) 613,924
Other (1,638,810) (/89 488)

?Iﬁiﬁﬂiﬂﬁﬂ 11d955251]

32.3 DEFERRED TAX (ASSET) / LIABILITY

Deferred tax asset comprises of:

{Deductible) temporary differences on:

Murabaha financing (118.978) (177,621}
Trade dettors (122,790) (122,693)
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities (1,641,387) (1,514,043)

(1,883,155) (1,814,356)
Deferred tax liability comprises of:

Taxable temporary differences on:

Fixed assets | 566,986 || 594,985 |
{1,316,169) {1,219,371)

Unrecogrized deferred tay asset 2.4 1,316,169 1,219,371

As at 30 June 5 %

32.4 Deferred tax asset as at June 30, 2025 to the extent of Rs. 1.32 million (Jure 30, 2024: Rs. 1.22 million) has mot
besn recognized as the Modaraba is uncertain abowt the timing and extent of future taxable profits against which
such benefits can be wtilized,

33. EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED 2025 2024
Profit for the year [Rupses) 23,898,201 28,542 477
Weighted average number of certificates lam qﬁm
Eamnings per certificate - basic and diluted (Rupees) 1,733 2.070

33.1 There s no dilutive effect on the basic eamings per certificate of the Modaraba, since there are no conwvertible
Instruments n issue as at June 30, 2025 (2024 Nil) which would have any effect on the earnings per certificate If
the aption to convert is exarcised.
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34, CHAMNGES ARISING FROM FINANCIMNG ACTIVITIES

Financing Financing cash Mon Cash
2025 July 1, 2024 Ry outfl " June 30, 2025
{(Rupees)
Unclaimed profit
distributions 18,729,685 - (108,445) = L
Accrsed peofit an
certificates of
musharaka 3,514,280 - (22,318,534) 22,135.622 3,331,368
COM matured
partics 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000
Certificates of
musharaka 168,400,000 35,700,000 (30,725,000} - 173,375,000
Financing Financing cash Mon Cash
2024 July 1, 2023 bt I outfh " June 30, 2024
(Rupees)
Unclaimed profit
distributions 19,234 B55 - {505,170% - 18,720,685
Accrued profit on
certificates of
musharaka 3,613,638 - (21,603.415) 21,504,057 3,514,280
COM matured
parties 9,850,000 - (7,050,000 2,800,000
Certificates of
musharaka 167,501,000 26,375,000 (25,475, 000% = 168,400,000
35 REMUMNERATION OF OFFICERS AND OTHER EMPLOYEES
2035 0634
Other Other
Officers Officers
employees employees

srmmasea } ===mam== sesssees {RupeBes) ========
Managerial remuneration 6,296,462 B,676,410 5833219 B,507,924
Alloavances 891,754 2,950,581 7E5,654 2,123,248
Frovident fund 314,823 363,164 307,451 331,662
EQBI BE,B0D 226,200 14,520 238,180
Cithesrs 127,012 201,296 2,387 15477

7,718,852 13,117,650 6,943,271 11,916,491
Mumber of person -t i3 4 13

A5.1 Three afficers are provided free use of the Modaraba's cars including fuel and ingurance,

35.2 Mo remuneration paid to the directors of the Modaraba Management Company for the year ended June 30, 2025
[ 2024: Mif).
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RISK MANAGEMENT

L

Financial risk management

The Modaraba’s objective In managing risk is the creation and protecton of certificate holders” wvalue, Risk is inherent in the
Modaraba's activities, bul it is managed through monitering and controliing activities which are primarily 22l up based on lirmits
established by the Management Company, the Modaraba’s constitutive documents and the regulations and directives of the SECP,
Thesaz limits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Moderaba a5 well as the level of the risk that the Madaraba
is willing to accept. The Board of Directors of the Management Company has owerall responsibility for the establishment and
aversight of the Modaraba’s risk management framework.

The Modaraba has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial irstruments:
= Lredit risk
= Liguidity risk
- Market nsk
{8} Credit risk

Cradit risk s the sk that the countorparty to o finandal instrument will cause a financiagl loss for the Modaraba by failing to
discharge an obligation. The risk s generally limited to outstanding amount against financing facilities and trede debts. The
Modaraba's policy & to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the risk management policies and the requirements of the
Modaraba rules and reguilations.

The carrying amounl of these financial assets represents the masimum credit expasure at the reporting dats.

2025 2024
me===ees (RUPBEE] ====== =
Murabaha financing 47,200,142 FhA62,003
Musharaka financing 13,940,054 25,940,054
Loan to empleyass 369,503 595,503
Long-term deprsis F.o0 7,700
Trade debibors 261,671,367 175,324,983
Advanoes and other receivables 19,148,102 16,392,893
Shoet term murabahe Minancing 4,791,668 .
Shoet berm deposit 256,800 1,863,994
derrued profit 70,332 1,532,576
Shoet term investment 23,434,916 21,308,669
Bank balances 18,114,460 46,593,946
JH% 365{1-3}'321

Description of collateral held

The Modaraba holds security In the form of mortgage of proparties, hypothecation and pledpe of goods and demand proméssory
notes against moderaba, murabaka, diminishing mushareka and rusharaka investrsenils,

Concentration of oredit risk

The Modaraba manages credit risk and its concentration through diverstfication of activities to avoid undue concentration of risks
with individuals, groups of specific industry segments. For this purpose, the Modaraba has established exposure limits for individuals

{ grougs and industrial sectars.

Concentration of credit risk arises when & mumber of counter parties are engaged in Smilar business sctivities or have Srmdar
economic features that would cause thes abilities to mest contractual obligation to be similarty effected by the changes in economac,
politecal o ofher conditions. The Moderaba believes that it is nol exposed o major concentration of credit risk. The modaraba’s
bamkars are of good rating, Detads of the industrial sector analysis of each financing are as follows;
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2025 2024

Rupees £ Rupees =
Chernical, fertilizer and pharmaceutical 17,030,637 25.73% 1,108,339 1.06%
Fuel and energy 1,577,772 2.38% 4,840,910 4.63%
Food, tobacos and beverages 14,032,397 21.20% 37,486,036 35.88%
Paper and board 26,764,420 40.43% 26,925,056 25.77%
Textile and Garments - 0.0 0% - 0.0 %%
Steel, engineering and automabiles - 0.00% - 0.00%
Transportation and communication 630,980 0.95% 19,267,982 18.44%
Othars 6,161,319 9.31% 14,847,679 14.21%
66,197,525 100% 104,476,002 100

Modaraba's cocrations are restricted to Pakistan ondy.

Craadit risk rating:

Tha cradit quality of balances with banks that are nelthar past due nor impaésed can be acsasced by reference to axbernal credit
ratings {If available) or o kstorcal mformation about counterparty default rate:

| Rating 2025 2024

| Banks [ ongtem |_Storcterm [ Agemey ] - (Rupess) -
Habib &ank Lirmited Ahh, 1+ PRCRA 422,67 4 BF, 257
Hahib Metropalitan Bank Limited LY Al+ PACRS 10,725,612 72,009,192
Faysal Bank Limitad AR Al+ PACRA 296,797 GEE, 059
Meezan Bank Limsted Ahd, Hl1+ V1S 6,655,095 24,108,176
& Baraka Bank (Fakistan} Limitad Ak Al VIS 11,452 10,545
Bank Islami Pakstan Limibed Af- A1 PACRA 282G 2717
EEI?E 4?|EIHII'I£

Due b0 the Company's kong standing bBusiness ralationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their
strong fimancial standing, maragement dogs not expect non-parformance by these cownterparties on their obigations o the
Modaraba. Accordengly, the credit risk is minimal.

(k) Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Modaraba will encounter difficulty i mesting its financiad ciligations as they fall due, Liquadity risk
arses because of the possibility that the Modaraba could be requared to pay its liabilibes earlier than expected or dfficulty in raising
Tunds 1o meel commitments associated with financial lisbilities as they fall due. The Modareba's approach Lo managing liquidity is 1o
ansure, a5 far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquadity to maet its llabiitias when due, undar both normad and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable oases or risking damage to the Modarsba's reputation. The Modesrabs manages bauidity
rigk by monitoring future cash Mows on a day-to-day basis. The armount disclosed in the @ble ane undiscounted cash Niows,

Contractual maturities of financial liakbilities:

| Contractual cash flows |

Carrying
2025 o Tatal
Certificates of musharaka 173,375,000 173,375,000
Creditors, accrued and other
kahilities 22,250,932 22,250,932 - - 22,250,932
Accrued profit on certificates of
musharaka 3,231,368 3,331,368 - - 3,331,368
Certificata of mushasaka - maturad
TR 2,800,000 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000
Unclaimed profit distributions 18,620,240 18,620,240 - - 18,620,240
Total 220,377,540 BE,502,540 104,975,000 26,900,000 220,377,540
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| Contractual cash flows |

Maturity aftar

2024 Carrying Matuirily wplo ol yaar bt Mara than thras Total

amossnt OTHE AT upto thres years

years
[ Rupesas )

Cartificates of musharaka 168, 400,000 47, 250,000 0,225,000 50,925,000 LEE 400,000
Creditors, accrued and other
liabilitiex 10,289,139 10,269,139 = = 10,289,159
fccrued profit on certificates of
musharaka 3,514,280 1,514, X80 - - 3,514,280
Cartificate of musharaka - mabured
i Hl& 2,800,000 2,600,000 = = 2,800,000
Unclaimed profit distributions 18,729,685 16,729,685 = = 18,729,685

203,733,104 B3,583,104 70,225 000 50,525,000 23,733,109

€}  Market risk

Market risk means that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices
such as foreign exchange rates, nterest rates and equity prices. The objecthees is to manage and control market risk aoposures within
acceptable parameters, while optirmesing the return. The currency risk, other price risk and proft rate risk essocialed with the
Modaraba’s business activities are stated as undar;

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the nsk that the faer value or future cash flows of a financial instroment will fuctuste a5 & result of changes n
foreign currency axchange rabes, Al present, the Modaraba & mob exposed 1o currency risk as all the trensactions are casried out in
Pakictani Rupoes.

(i) Other price risk

Other price risk represants the nsk that the far value or future cash Aows of & financial instrument will luctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than thase arising Fromm interest rate rsk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by Tactors
specific e the indwvidual financial irstrurmant or ks Esuer, o factors affecting all simdar financial Instrement raded in the markeat,
There is other price risk of changes in the fair «alue of imestment in muteal funds 25 a result of changes in the levels of net asset
walue of units held by the Modaraba. As at June 30, 2025, had there been increase § dacrease in net asset valos by 1%, with all
ather variables held constant, the profit befone tax for the year and equity would have been Magher [ kwwer by Bupses 0,23 million
{June 3, 2024; Rupess 0,21 milion) and Rupees 0,166 million {(June 30, 2024; Rupees 0,151 million),

(iii) Profit rabe risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the vabue of a linancial instroment will Ruoctuste due W changes in the market yield, The Modaraba hes
alspted appropriate policies 1o minimise 15 explsune to this risk. AT the repoiting date, the profit rate peofile of the Modaralbas
sigrificant profit bearing financial irstrumants was as follows:

2025 2024
Financial assets -—-—- {Rup&es) ---—--
Fixed rabe
Murabaha financing 47,200,142 F5AG2 003
Short tarm murabaha financing 4,791,668 =
——SL99L810 ___ 7552,065
Financial assats
Variable rate
Bank balances 2,367,735 37,896,005
9,367,735 37,898,008
Financial liabilities
Variable rate
Cartificate of musharaka 173,375,000 158,400,000
On statement of financial positon gap {164,007, 265} (130,501,992
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 begis points in profit rates st the reporting date would have (decreased) | increaged post tax profit for the year by
the amounts shioeen Belew. This analysis assumes that all other varables remain constant, The Following information surmarizes the
estimated effects of hypothetical increases and decreases in profil rates on cash Mows Trom financial assets and lisbilities that are
subject to profit rate sk,

| 2025 || 2024 |
Increase Diecrease Increase Decrease
Rupees Rupsas Rupees Rupsas
Cash flow sansitivity - variable rate finandal assets 66,511 (66,511) 264,076 [269,076)
Cash flos sensitivity - variable rate financial Babilities (1,230,863) 1,230,963 {1,155, 640} 1,584,000
Net et =l S ASE) LI5S 433 (235204 L2

38.2 Recognized fair value measurements
{a) Financial assets
Fair value hierarchy

Judgmenis and estemates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognized and measwned at
fair value in these uncorsolidabed financial staterments, Too provide an indication about the reffabilty of the inputs used n
cetermining fair vabhee, the Modaraba has chassified its financial instruments into the: following thres kevals,

Level 1@ The fair value of finandal mstruments traded in active markets (such as publicly tragded derivatives, and trading and
available for <ale sacurities) is based on quoted market prices ot the end of the reparting period. The guoted market price used Tor
financial assets held by the Modasaba is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Layel 2: The fair value of finandal instruments that are not traded 0 an active markat (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is

determined wsing waluation technigues which maximize the use of observalile market data and rely as Bttle as possible om entiby-
specific estimates. If all significant mputs reguired to fair value an instrument are ohservable, the instrument & included in beval 2.

Ll 3: IF cne oF more af the sigrificant inpets is nob based on observable markel dats, the indtrument is included in level 3, This
the case far unlisted aquity securities.

Inwvestment of the Modaraba carried at fair value are categorized &% Follows:

30-Jun-25
Lavel-1 Level-2 Lavel-2 Total
Rupees
Assels
Short term investmient
Fair value through profit or loss 23,434,916 - - 23,434,916
30-Jun-24
Lewel-1 Level-2 Level-3 Tatal
oL peeses:
Assets
Short term investment
Fair valwe through peofit or loss 21,308,669 - - 21,308,669

There wiere no transfers bebwsen various levels of fair value hierarcy during the year,
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The carrying value of all non-financial assets reflected in these unconsolidated financial statements are approgmate their
fair values, Fair value s determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date,

3E.3 Financial instruments by categories

Financlal assets as per statement of financial position

Murabaha financing

Musharaka financing

Loan to employess

Long term deposits

Trade debtors

Advanoes and other receivables
Short term murabaha financing
Shart term depasit

Accrued profit

Cash and bank balances

Shart term investrment

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

Certificates of rusharaka

Creditors, accrued and other liabaities
Certificate of musharaka - matured and payable
Accrued profit on certificates of musharaka
Unclaimed prafit destributions

2025 2024
wmmmses (RUPEAS) ===nsms=
| At amortized cost |

47,200,142 75,462,003
13,948,054 25,949,054
369,503 595,503
7,700 7,700
262,671,367 175,324,983
19,148,102 16,392,893
4,791,668 -
256,800 1,863,954
70,332 1,532,576
18,210,311 47,115,806

ﬁlﬂ'&!ﬂ 344 244‘512

At fair value through profit or
loss

2 916 21,308,669

| At amortized cost |

173,375,000 168,400,000

22,250,932 10,289,139
2,800,000 2,800,000
3,331,368 3,514,280

18,620,240 1B, 729,665

230,377,540 203,733,104
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Reconciliation to the line items presented in the statement of financial position is as follows:

As at June 30, 2025

Assets as per statement of financial position
Fixed assets

Intangibole assets

Long term investments
Murabaha financing

Musharaka financing

Loan to employees

Long term deposits

Stock in trade

Trade debtors

Advances, prepaymaents and other receivables
Shaort term murabaha financing
Short term deposit

Accrued profit

Shart barm investmient
Taxation-net

Cash and bank balances

Az at June 30, 2025

Deferred income

Certificates of musharaka

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Accreed profic on certificates of musharaka
Certificate of musharaka - matured and payable
Unclairmed profit distributions

Total as per

Financial sssets N Inencal  Statement of

Position

- (Rupees) -
- 23,281,703 23,281,703
- 144,147 144,147
- 9,980 9,980
47,200,142 - 47 200,142
13,949,054 - 13,949,054
369,503 - 369,503
7,700 = 7,700
- 12,475,079 12475079
262,671 36T - 262,671 367
19,148,102 15,192,613 34,340,715
4,791,668 - 4,791,668
256,800 = 256,800
70,332 = 70,332
23,434,916 - 23,434,916
= 58,067 855 68,067 855
18,210,311 - 18,210,311
390,109,895 119,171,377 509,281,272
Taotal as per

Financial Non-financial Statement of

liabilities liabilities Financial

Position

—--—- (Rupees) ——--

- 8,730,348 8,730,348
173,375,000 - 173,375,000
22,250,932 6,280,335 28,531,267
3,331,368 = 3,331,368
2,800,000 - 2,800,000
18,620,240 - 18,620,240
220,377,540 15,010,683 235,388,223

I -


https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download

- — . 4
dirst Paramaunt Madarata
{An Islamic Financial Institution)

FIRST PARA
MOUARABA
Total as per
Pnancit st Mo Sroncl  Sttsmer of
Position
As at June 30, 2024 ——==r== (RUp@es) —------
Assets as per statement of financial position
Fixed assets - 13,102,420 13,102,420
Intangible assets - 205,924 205,924
Long term investments - 9,980 9,980
Murabaha financing 75,462,003 = 75,462,003
Musharaka financing 25,949,054 - 25,949,054
Loan to emplayees 595,503 = 595,503
Long term deposits 7,700 - 7,700
Stock in trade - 24,102,663 24,102,663
Trade debtors 175,324,983 = 175,324,583
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 16,392,893 6,733,762 23,126,655
Short term murabaha financing 5 = =
Short berm deposit 1,863,994 - 1,863,994
Accrued profit 1,532,576 - 1,532,576
Short term Invesbment 21,308,669 = 21,308,569
Taxatkon-net - G, 106,437 64,106,437
Cash and bank balances 47,115,806 - 47,115,806
365,553,181 108,261,186 473,814,367
Total as per
Financial Mon-financial  Statement of
liabilities liabilities Financial
Pasition
As at June 30, 2024 Sy P
Deferred income - 15,101,882 15,101,882
Ceertificates of musharaka 168,400,000 = 168,400, 000
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 10,289,139 4,984,533 15,273,672
Accrued profit on certificates of musharaka 3,514,280 - 3,514,280
Cestificate of musharaka - matured and payable 2,800,000 = 2,800,000
Unclaimed profit distributions 18,729,685 - 18,729,685
203,733,104 20,086,415 222,819,519
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39. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

39.1 The following information is based on wn-audited financial information of the Staff Provident Fund for the year ended June
3, 2025 and Juna 30, 2024,

2025 2024
{Rupaas) --------
Size of the funds - Total assets 11 55 10,163,135
Cost of investrments T, 200,
Fair walue of insestments out of Prowvident Fund T, e, o
Percentage of investrments macde EHE
39,2 Details of fair value of investments:
Bank balances 7403176 5,236,949
Advances to employess 2,643,679 3,526,186
Trvvesstment in sharia complisnt certificate of musharaks — 1400000 1400000
= 1446855 10163135
2025 2024
40, NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES e L T
The nurmber of employess during the year are as follows:
Musmber of employess - permanent 17 16
fverage number of employess - permanent 16 16
Mumber of emplovess - contractual E 1
fverage numiber of employess - contractual i 1

41. GEMERAL
41.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

41.2 Certain corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to comply with the
requirements of fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017, Following major reclassifications have been made during the

eI
Description Reclassified from Reclassified to 2024
Balance
{Rupess)
Creditors, accrued and other Short-term deposit - Prosesion for
Provigion for doubtful recoveries liabilities - athers doubtfid recoveries 1,100,000
Short tarm deposits Long term deposits Short term deposits 254,800
Advances, prepayments and other
receivables - Sindh sales tax
Sindh sales tax recefvable Sindh sales tax recelvabie recelvable 5,914,464

42, DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue on 01 October 2025 by the Board of
Directors of the Modaraba Management Company.

For Paramount Investments Limited
(Managerment Comparny)

'CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Moruphi B - S hain e,
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Independent Audiior's Repoart
To the Certificate holders of First Paramount Modaraba

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements
Opinion

Wi have audited the annesed consolidated financial statemants of FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA and iis
subsidiaries ("the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as @ June 30,
2025, and the consolidated staterment of profit or loss and comprehensive income, the consalidated statemant
of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial staternents, including material accounting policies and other explanatony information.

In our opinkon, the consclidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the coneolidated fnancial
position of the Group as 8t June 30, 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and ds consalidaled
m;:ﬁnmn foor the year then anded in eccordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicabla in
P tan.

Basiz for Dpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Inlernational Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilibes under those standards are furiher described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the consolidated financial statements seclion of our repon. We are independent of the Group and
the Group Management Company (Paramount investmenis Limited) in accordance with the Intemational Ethice
Standards Board for Accountants ‘Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants’ as adopled by the Instilute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have lulliled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence wa have obained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinkon,

Emphasis of matter

We drae attention 1o nole 22.1 to the consolidated financial statements, which states that the Group s nan-
compliant with the credit rating and minimum esquity requirements as stipulated in Modaraba Reguiations 2021,
As lully disclosed in the aforesald note, the extension pericd has lapsed on Awgust 14, 2025 and a renewal
appfication has been filed with the authorities which is under process, Our opinlon is not modified in respect of
this matier.

Kay Audit Matters

Eey audit matiors ara those matiers that, in our professional judgement, were of mosl significance in our audil
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matiers were addressed in the context of
our awdit of the consolidated financial stalemants as a whola, and in forming our opinicn thereon, and wa do
not provide & separats opinion on these mattars.

E:HLJ

Cororen Fusasin Craudnury K Co, is @ member o Ciova (ictal, o Swins enrmin. Fach membor Tem of Crowes Slotbal i a wat dient logal antty, Crws
Fusgpn Chigadinr B Co. and s affiales nre ool meponsive o babia fr @'y &5 of oeessions of G rows Gobal or aeg o member of o Gbonsl Crowa Global
I{;ﬁmrmmumlmuwmmnmmMp bre el dn gt Hudesaen Chaodhory £Go.

fi il &Cn
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Following are the Key audil matters:

ANERAT S DN ETAY S EEmL

| 5. No | Key Audit Matter

| How the matter was addressed in our audit

d

o1 Income from Murabaha financing

Tha Group earns income from the | Cur audit procedures in respect of this matter included |

murabaha financing which is itz substantial | the following:

income source (Refer note 211 o the

consclidated financial stalements). During | - Obtained an understanding, including the design and

the year, the Group has recognized implementation of intermal controls over recording and

income of Rs. 13.23 million. proceassing of murabaha incoma,

We identified income from the murabaha | - Assessed the appropriateness  of the Group's

financing as a key audit matter because of accounting policy for recerding of income and in line

the potential risk that income from the |  with the requirements of applicable lew, accounting and

murabaha financing ransactions may not reparting standards,

be accurately recorded, recognized in the

appropriate period. and not properly |- Malched customer contrects with the income and

disclosed in the consolidated financial repaymeant schedule, pedormed recalculation on

statemenis. sample basis o ensure that income s appropriately
recorded and also evaluated that these contracts were
appropriately classified and recorded in the appropriate
accounting period,

= On sample basis, traced the installments received from
tha underlying records issuad to contract holders and
applied substaniive analytical procedures to delerming
any variations.

| - Evaluated the income accrued bul not received is
appropriately classified as suspended income as per
applicable modaraba regulations.,

- Recalculaled the unearned porion of ncoma and
chaecked the appropriate amount has been recorded as
uneamead income in liabilities.

We also evaluated the adequacy of the overall

disclosures in the consobdated financial statemenis In

respect of income from murabaha financing in
accordance with the requirements of applicable financial
—_— reporting framework.
02 Stock in trade
(Refer note 27.1.2, amounting fo Rs. 12.48 | Our audit procedures include the following:
rmiillicry
" - We assassed the appropriateness of the Group's
Stock-in-trade is a material balance in the | 3cCounting policies relating 1o stock-in-trade valuation,
financial statements. The Group values its including the use of the weighted average method, for
stock-in-trade al the lower of cost and net | ©ompliance with applicable accounting standards and
realizable walue (NRV), with cost Modaraba Regulstions.
datermined using the weighted averege
rrethed.
L
e

I 77
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The application of the weighted average | - We testad the design and cperating eflectivensss of

method requires accurate recording of | conlrols over the recording of stock transactions and

purchase and consumplion transactions, | valuation.

Further, determination of NRV involves

judgment in assessing markel conditions | - On 8 sample basis, we verifed purchase cosis to

and realizability. supporting invoices and recalculaled weighted average
cosl 10 assAsE ACCUrACY. |

Given the significance of the balance and |
involvement of estimation, this area was | - We evaluated the NRV assessment by reviewing
considered a key audit matter. subsaquent sales prices and market data to ensure that
stock was not carried above realizable value.

- We checked whether provisions for slow-moving or
obsolete stock were adequately considered.

We also evalualed the adequacy of the overall
l disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The management of the Group is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Group's annual report, but does not include the consolidated and unconsclidated
financial statements of the Modaraba and our auditor's report thereon,

Owr opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 8 material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and Board of Directors of the modaraba company for the consolidated
financial statements

Management of the Group is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
slatemants in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (300X1 of 1980)
and Companies Act, 2017 (XIV of 2017) and for such intemal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the praparation of consolidated financial statements that are frea from malerial misstatement,
whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related fo going concem and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic allemative but to do so.

Board of directors of the Group Modaraba Company are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process,

oy
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consclidated financial statements

Our objectives are o ablain reasonable assurances about whether the consolidated financial siatements as a
whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantes that an audit
conducled in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a materal misstatement when it
exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected (o influance the economic decizions of users taken on the basig
of these consolidated financial statements.

As pan of an audit in accordance with I1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also; -

a) Identify and assess the risks of materal misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidenca that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detacting a
raterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from eror, as fraud msy
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control:

b) Oblain an understanding of intermnal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Modaraba's internal contral:

c) Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimales and related disclosures made by management of the Madaraba Campany,

d} Conclude on the appropriateness of the management of the Madaraba Company's use of the going
concem basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncerainty
axists related 1o events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Modaraba's ability 1o
continue as a going concerm. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exisls, we ara raquirad lo draw
attention in our awditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusicns are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, fulure events or conditions may
cause the Modaraba to cease to confinue as a going concern; and

a)] Evaluate the overall presentation, struciure and content of the consolidated financial slatements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the undarlying
transactions and evenls in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Wea communicate with the board of directors of the Group Management Company regarding, among other
matiers, tha planned scope and liming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audil.

We also provide the board of directors of the Group Management Company with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 1o communicate with them all
redationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the board of directors of the Group Management Company, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the eonsolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matler or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we deteérming that a matter should nol be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest banefits of such
communication.

L4
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Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 were audited by another firm of
chartered accountants, who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements vide their repart
dated Octobar 4, 2024

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Imran Shaikh.

¥ 7
I
c Hussain Chaudhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: Ka

pated: 02 0CT 2025

UDIN: AR202510207bNz037Ps0
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2025 FLiFL]

ASSETS Mote mmmemes [ RupEEs | e
HOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
Foosd assets [E] 23,281,703 13, 102,420
Intangithe assets ¥ 144,147 205,524
Furababa finanong B 19,403,574 31,908,503
Musharaéa Mnancing 2 = 12,0000, DOk
Loan to smployess 10 231,503 3p%, 503
Long banm degosits 7. 00 7, P

A3, GE, 62T 57004, 510
CURRENT ASSETS
Trads debtors 1L 262,671,367 175,324 507
Stack in trade 12,475 070 4,103,663
Advances, prepaymerts and other receivables 12 34,950,461 20,120,655
Shart bermn miurabaha financing 13 4,701,668 =
Curmenk makunky af non-cument assets 14 a1, 5EN 622 57638, 009
Shart term depast 15 256,800 1,863,994
fconued profit 16 F0O,332 1,532,506
Shart tarm investmsant 17 23,434 916 21,308,667
Taxation - net GE, D67 A58 e, 10,437
Cash ard bank Balardes 1E 47,123,633

TOTAL ASSETS EE&T}EE-I ] 14

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CERTIFICATE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised cartificate capital

A0,000,000 [2024; 25,000,000) certificates of Rupses 10/~ sach

Issued, subscribad ard paid-up certificate capital 12 137,884,193 137,884,193

Capital resarses 0 113,005, 758 B, 550,505

FLarsR N MRS Z2X,30F 468 23,393 468

Equity attributabile to certificate holders of the holding compeany 273 AFE A1 240,827,166

Mon-contralling interest {558] {315]

Trotal squity 273,371,061 240, 26, BS0

LIABILITIRS

ROMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred income 21 " 796263

Cortificates of muEharaks 2z HLBTS,IIHI 131,150,000
135, 2357, 008 179,112,654

CURRENT LIABTLITIES

Creditars, accred and sther labilibes 23 15,499,517

Curnent ratunty of defermed ircomee 2l 5,.3&?, 7,135, 248

Cument maturity of certificates of mushanaka 22 &7, 250,000

Certificate af musharaka - matured and payable a4 me 2,800, 00

Aecrued profit an oedtificetes af rusharsks 25 3,514,280

Unclaimed profit dstributions !I.!,.Elﬂ,.lﬂl 18,739,535

____ Saaraia
TOTAL LIABILITIES E?JE'! -I-!L"I EE 985, 354

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITHENTS

26

EEII-T;II?-II lﬂlﬂlslllﬂ

The annewed notes from 1 to 42 foem an inbegral part of these consolidated financial statements.

For Paramownt Investments Limited
{Group Management Company)

CHIEF FINAMNCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER “DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AMD LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR EMDED JUNE 30, 2025

Income from trading operations

Income from murabaha financing

Income from diminshing musharaka financing
Income from musharaka financing

Adrministrative and operating expenses
Provision for doubtful recoveries - met
Cther income

Financial charges

Modaraba Management Company’s remuneration

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
Profit before levy and taxation

Levy
Profit before taxation

Taxalion
Profit after taxation

Other compeehensive income

Total comprehensive income

FIRST PARAMOUNT
MODARABA

ERENE]S EMEEET SEFEET

2025 2024
Mote (PRupees) s=ccaees
27 81,790,354 88,983, 786
21.1 13,232,119 14,55, 7ET
- 108,939
2,291,391 1,993,135
97,313,864 105,151 647
28 {46,372,156) {45,702, 2400
(511,514) {155,660
28 7,620,842 8,195,102
58,051,037 67, 4EE, 340
20 {22,146,001) {21,557 034)
35,905,036 45,931,306
3 (3,625,823) {4,609,932)
32,279,213 41,321,374
(652,648) (829, 788)
31,626,565 40,491,586
az {711,691} (621,877)
30,914,874 39,869,709
iz (7,369,863) {11,495,250)
23,545,011 28,374,450

E&ll EEIEE#E*!EE

Share of profit attributable to @
Certificate holders of the Modaraba 23,545,253 28,374,795
Maon-contralling interest —_— (242}  (336)

— 23545011 23.379.450
Eamings per certificate - basic and diluted 33 1.71 2.06
The annexed notes from 1 o 42 form an inkegral part of these consolidated financial statements.

For Paramount Investments Limited
(Group Management Company)

'CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER "DIRECTOR
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FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

20258 2024
Mote —=-—- (Rupees) —--—--
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Brofit before leyvy and taxabion AL 620,565 0,957, %86
Adjustenants for nen-cash ems:
Depreciation and amartization . 4,281,697 2,365,720
Gan on disposal of fived pogets {1,544, 542 [36F952)
Prorwision Tor Sindh ‘Workers' Walfare Fund 652,648 B2%.738
Firandal dhanges o 22,145,001 21,557 1034
Broraision for doubbiul recoveries - net $11,514 155,660
Bad dahbs variten off = 3, 730568
26,047,518 #8,275,114
57,674,083 B8, FEE, 704
Dcraase [ (incraasa) in currant assels
Murabaina firancing - net 23,950,873 39,803 857
Cermmishing ™usharaka financing - net - GBI, T
Eirsharaka finarcing - net 12,000,000 BRI HER ]
Modaraba finarcing - net - 1,822,314
Stock in brads 11,627,584 13,650 459
Trace debiors (87,346,564 (B7,646,510)
Advancas, pragayments and other recsivables (11,439,806} 12,640, 500
Short berm deposit 215,000 2,342 806
Recarable fram Al-burg sssooates - 1,221,554
Short term irestrsnt (2,126,247} [532.254)
Accrued profit 1,45%F 244 Si2 055
Incraass | (decreass) in curment Babillitiag
Creditors, accrued and other liahikbes 14,350,292 5511550
Deferred income {6,371,534) {3817 616
Cash genarated from operatione 14,006,108 60,435,503
Finarecial changes paed {10,37%) (53,977
Recowsry from loans to employess 226,000 173938
Ly and imoome tax paid {12,042,972) {8,642 935)
Mt cash geasrabad From aperating activities 2,178,754 31,013.580
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assels (15,027,361) 3,634,427
Trrwestmresnt in ssdiary = =
Sale proceed on disposals of fixed assets glrgm
Mt cash used in investing activities {12,854,861) 12044 227
CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMCING ACTINVITIES
Certificates of Musharaks - issuancs 22 3%, 700,000
Cartificates of Musharaka - rademglion 22 (30,725,000)
Paid against matured certificabe af mushanaka -
Profit pard bo certficates of Musharska halders (22,318,534)
Profit clistribubed o cenificate Mobdors (186,445
Mot cash used in financing activities [17,452,979) {8,358, 5a5)
Nat [decrease) [ increase in cash and cash equivalents [2B,129,0B6) 710,577
Cash and cash eguralents st begrning of the year 1?,15:13 ﬁl E&
Cash and cash aguivalents at and of the year 18 16894, 547 47123633

Thee annesed rotes rom 1 o 42 Torm an inbegral part of thess oorrecdidatéd nardial statemsnts,

Far Paramaunt Investmants Linibed
[Group Management: Company)
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FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1. THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Group consist of First Paramount Modaraba and its subsidiaries namely, Paramount Compliance
Private Limited and Complytech Global Limited.

1.1 First Paramount Modaraba

First Paramount Modaraba (“the Modaraba™) is a multi-purpose, perpetual and multi-dimensional
Modaraba floated under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980 and the rules framed there under and is managed by Paramount Investments Limited (the
Management Modaraba), a company incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) on June 26, 1994, The Modaraba Is listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited.

The registered office is situated at Suit Mo. 107- 108, First Floor, P.E.C.H.5. Community Office Complex,
Block 2, Shahrah-e-Quaideen, Karachi, in the province of Sindh.

The Modaraba is engaged in deployment of funds on Murabaha, Modaraba and Musharaka arrangements
and its in-house ventures are:

(a) Electrical maintenance and troubleshooting services under the name of "FPM Solutions";
(b) Chemical business under the name of "FPM Petro Services";

"The Modaraba has been assigned a credit rating of "BEB’ for the long term and "A-3" for the short term
by VIS Credit Rating Company.

1.2 Paramount Compliance Private Limited

The Paramount Compliance Private Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on August 24, 2023 as a private
limited company under the Companies Act, 2017. The registered office is situated at Suit No. 107-108,
First Floor, P.E.C.H.5. Community Office Complex, Block 2, Shahrah-e-Quaideen, Karachi, in the province
of Sindh. The principal activity of the Paramount Compliance Private Limited is provision of Anti Money
Laundering screening services and solutions, Paramount Compliance Private Limited s yet to commence
commercial operations. Non-controlling interest in the Paramount Compliance Private Limited - subsidiary
company is 0.02% (2024: 0.02%).

1.3 Complytech Global Limited

The Compiytech Global Limited is wholly owned subsidiary of Paramount Compliance Private Limited and
was incorporated in United Kingdom on January 15, 2024 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act, 2006, The registered office is situated at Unit 19 1-13 Adler Street, London, England, E1
1EG. Non-controlling interest in the Complytech Global Limited — subsidiary company is 0.02% (2024:
0.02%).
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan comprise of;

- The requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Ploatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980, Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulation 2021 and directives
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP);

- International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP)} as are notified under the Companies Act 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

In case where reqguirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) differ, the Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba Rules, 1981, the Modaraba Regulation, 2021 and directives issued by SECP shall prevail.

2.2 Basiz of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
measurement at fair value of certain financial instruments in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9
"Financial Instrument’, wherever applicable.

Permissible Islamic financial products including murabaha, musharaka and modaraba have been used by
the Group, the accounting and presentation of the same are in line with the substance of the transactions
and their accounting is limited to the extent of actual amount of facility utilized and mutually agreed
profit thereon. Accordingly, purchases, sales and musharaka profits / reserves are not reflected in these
consofidated financial statements.,

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group's
functional currency. All financial information presented in Pakistani Rupees has been rounded to the
nearest rupees, except otherwise stated.,

2.4  Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in confarmity with accounting and reporting
standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the crcumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carmying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewad on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. Information about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting
policies, that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in these annual consolidated
financial statements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties with significant risk of material
adjustment to the carrying amount of asset and liabilities in the next year are described in the following
rotes:

- Useful Iife and rate of depreciation of depreciable assets (refer note 4.1 & 5)
- Prowision for Income taxes (refer note 4.18 & 32)
- Provision (refer note 4.21)

3. Changes in accounting standards and interpretations

i) New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for
the year ended June 30, 2025

The following amendments are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025. These amendments are
gither not relevant to the Group's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements other than certain additional disclosures,

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IFRS practice statement 2 -
Disclosure of accounting policies

Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors' -
Definition of accounting estimates

Amendments to 'TAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and liabilities anising from
a single transaction.

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ - Onerous
Contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

ii) New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not effective
for the year ended June 30, 2025

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them, These standards, interpretations
and the amendments are either not relevant to the Group's operations or are not expected to have
significant impact on the Groups's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures;
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Effective from the
accounting period
beginning on or
after
Amendments to IAS 21 "The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates' - Clarification on how entity accounts when there is long term
lack of Exchangeability January 01, 2025
IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts January 01, 2026
Amendments IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments’ and IFRS 7 "Financial
instruments disclosures' - Classification and measurement of financial
instruments January 01, 2026

IFRS 51 — General requirements for disclosure of sustainability — related financial information & IFRS
52 = Climate related disclosures are applicable as follows:

Phase-I
Listed companies fulfilling any two criteria (i) to (i) below shall comply the Sustainability Disclosure
Standards from annual reporting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2025:

iy Annual turnover greater than Rs. 25 billion in last two consecutive financial years as per their
financial statements; or

i) Number of employees (permanent and contractual) greater than 1,000 as at last financial year-
end; ar

jii} Total assets greater than Rs. 12,5 billion as at last financial year-end.

Phase-1I
Listed companies fulfilling any two criteria (i) to (i) below shall comply the Sustainability Disclosure
Standards from annual reporting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2026:

i) Annual turnover greater than Rs. 12.5 billion in last two consecutive financial years as per their
financial statements; or

ity Number of employees (permanent and contractual) greater than 500 as at last financial year-end;
or

iii} Total assets greater than Rs. 6.25 billion as at last financial year-end.

Phase-1I1

Listed companies (other than those falling in Phase-I and Phase-11 above) and non-listed Public-
Interest-Companies which are licensed or registered with the Commission shall comply the
Sustainability Disclosure Standards from annual reporting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2027.
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Other than the aforesaid amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which have not
been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of Intermmational Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 18 - Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements
- IFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

4. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

These consdlidated finandal statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies.,

A company is a subsidiary, if the Holding Company directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or
holds more than fifty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power o elect and appoint more
than fifty percent of its directors.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date when such control ceases.,

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding
Company, using consistent accounting policies, The accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been
changed to conform with accounting policies of the Group, where required.

All intra—group balances, transactions and unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra—group
transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

Where the ownership of a subsidiary ks less than hundred percent and therefore, a non-controlling
interest (NCI) exists, the NCI Is allocated its share of the total comprehensive Income of the period, even
if that results in a deficit balance.

The assets, liabllities, Income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by ling
basis and carmrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiary
companles’ shareholders’ equity in these consolidated financial statements.

5. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The materlal accounting policy information applied In the preparation of these consolldated financial
statements are set out below. These polices have been consistently applied to all years presented,
unless otherwise stated:

5.1 Fixed Assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairments, if any. Cost of fixed ascets
consists of historical cost.

Subsequent costs are incduded in the asset's carryving amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized while normal replacements, repairs and maintenance are charged to consolidated skatement
of profit and loss.
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Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the reducing balance method at the rates
mentioned in note (5). Depreciation on additions and disposals during the yvear is charged from the date
asset is available for use while no depreciation is charged from the date asset is disposed. When parts of
an item of asset have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate ibem in property and
equipment. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if
required,

An item of fixed assets is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets are determined by comparing proceeds
with the carrying amount. These are taken to the consolidated statement of profit and loss account
currently.

2.2 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
Intangible assets are amortized under the reducing balance method at the rate of thirty percent per
Annum.

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the camryving value may not be recoverable.

5.3 Loans to employees

Loans to employees are granted by the Group for purchasing of wehicles or for other purposes, as
approved by the management on case-to-case basis. Loans granted are initially recorded at fair value.
Subsaquent to initial recognition, these are stated at amaortized cost.

5.4 Murabaha financing

Modaraba obtains an undertaking (promise to purchase) from the dient and purchases the requested
assets [ goods from third parties and takes passession of such goods [ assets that are the subject matter
of murabaha arrangements. However, the Modaraba can appoint the client as its agent to purchase the
assets/goods on its behalf. Thereafter, it sells these goods [ assets to the dient at cost plus the profit
agreed upon in the promise. Murabaha sale is recorded at the invoiced amount and profit is recognized in
accordance with IFAS-1 (Murabaha) to the extent of pro-rata partion of sale price received as compared
to total agreed price. Profit on the portion of sale revenue not due for payment is deferred and
recognized as liability. Goods purchased by the Modaraba but remained unsold, with the Modaraba
constitute inventories, if any at reporting date.

5.5 Modaraba financing

Modaraba is a kind of partnership where one partner gives money to another for investing it in a
commerdial enterprise. The investment comes from the first partmer who B called “rabb-ul-mal” (here
FPM), while the management and work are an exclusive respansibility of the other, who is called
"modarib” and the profits generated are shared in a predetermined ratio. Modaraba receivable are
reflected at principal amount.

5.6 Musharaka financing

Musharaka is an agreement betwesn btwo or more parties to combine their assets, labour or liahilities for
the purpose of making profit. Group is dealing in the following forms of Musharaka.
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a) Diminishing musharaka

In diminishing musharaka based financing, the Group enters into a Musharaka based on Shirkat=ul-
miulk {Joint arrangement) for financing an agreed share of fixed asset (e.g., houss, land, plant or
machinery) with its customers and enters Into yearly profit payments agreement for the utilization of
the Modaraba's Musharaka share by the customer. The customer with sach rental payments also
purchases Modaraba's Musharaka share by paying additional amount and therefore becomes the sole
owner of the subject asset at thie maturity of the diminishing musharaka.

b} Musharaka financing

Group enters inbo financing arrangement with customers based on Shirkat-ul-agqd (contractual
partrership) In customers’ operating business. Under this mechaniem, the customer can withdraw
and return funds to the Group subject to his running musharaka financing limit during the musharaka
year. The customer pays the provisional profit which is subject 1o final settlement based on the actual
results of the business [ transaction.

5.7 Financial instruments

Investments and other financial assets
a) Classification

The Group classifies its financlal assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortized cost

The classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of profit
and loss or other comprehensive income, For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on
the business model in which the investent is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the eqguity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Group
reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly atiributable
ba the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets with embedded dervatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets s included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in statement of profit and loss and
presented in other income / (other expenses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss,

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYVTOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FYTOCL. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses), interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
other comprehensive income s reclassified from equity to statement of profit and loss and recognized
in other income [ (other expenses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
other income [/ (other expenses) and impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit and loss.,

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or PYTOCT are measurad at FVTPL. A gain or
las= on a debt instrurment that is subsequently measured ak FYTPL is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss and presented net within other income / (other expenses) In the period in which it
arises,

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments except for investment in subsidiary at fair value
for financial instruments quoted in an active market, the fair value corresponds to a market price (level
1}. For financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market, the fair value is determined using
valuation technigues including reference to recent arm’s length market transactions or transactions
involving financial instruments which are substantially the same (level 2), or discounted cash fow
analysis including, to the greatest possible extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data
{level 3).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Where the Groups management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subseguent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of Impaimment
Iosses) on equity investments measured at FYTOCT are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.
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Fair value through profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in
other income / (other expenses) in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as applicable.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in statement of profit and loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial lability is classified
as at FVTPL If it Is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on Initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is also included in statement of profit and loss.

i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortized cost and FYTOCI. The impairmeant methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach for measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all financial assets, except in the case of calculation of
impairment provision on financial assets where the requirements of the Prudential Regulations for
Group applies, it is recognized as higher of (on customer basis):

« the provision required under the Modaraba Regulations, 2021; and
» the provision required under IFRS 9 using the expected credit loss (ECL) model.

Loss allowance on advances and bank balances is measured at 12 months expected credit losses.
Since these assets are short term in nature, therefore no credit loss is expected on these balances.
The Modaraba is also not expecting @ material impact on loan to employees and depaosits,

ii) De-recognition
a) Financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred,
or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such derecognized financial assets
that is created or retained by the Group is recognized as a separate asset or liability.
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b) Financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

iii) Offsetting of finandial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off and the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously,

5.8 Investment in subsidiary company

Investments in subsidiaries is initially recognized at cost, At subsequent reporting dates, recoverable
amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any, and carrying amount of the
investment adjusted accordingly.

5.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with banks In current and deposit accounts and
investments with short term maturity.

5.10 Stockintrade

Stock in trade is measured at bower of cost and net realizable value as at the reporting date. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

Met realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business |ess costs
necessary to be incurred in order to make a sale. If the net realizable value is lower than the carrying
amount, a write-down is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its net
realizable value, Provision is made in the consolidated financial statements for obsolete and slow-moving
stock in trade based on management estimate.

5.11 Trade debtors and other receivables

Trade debtors and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for
doubtful recelvables based on review of outstanding amounts as per expected credit losses maodel (ECL)
as required by IFRS O as at year end date.

5.12 Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve represents profit set aside to comply with the Modaraba Regulations issued by the
SECP vide 5.R.0. 284(1)/2021 dated March 05, 2021. These Regulations require Modaraba which is not
compliant with minimum equity requirements as provided in the regulations, shall create reserve fund to
which shall credit an amount equivalent to 100% of its annual after-tax profit till such time the minimum
equity requirements are complied with, During the year, the Group transferred 100% of its after-tax

profit.
Kk
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5.13 Certificates of musharaka

These are measured at principal amount on balance sheet date. The amount received by the Group from
Certificate of Investment holders is invested in the overall business activity of the modaraba on the basis
of full participation in the profit or loss of the Group.

The profit shall be shared by Certificate of Investment holders and certificate holders in accordance with
the agreed ratio. Profit on certificate of investment arrangement is recognized as financial expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Profit on Musharaka finance is accounted for on the basis of the projected rate of profit, The effect of
adjustments, if any, between actual rate and projected rate of profit is accounted for at the end of each
quarter after determination of the actual rate.

5.14 Creditors and other liabilities

Creditors and other liabilities are recognized initially at fair valee plus directly attributable cost, If any, and
subsequently measured at amortized cost.

5.15 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are
recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable
amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is
recognized in consolidated statement of profit and loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Where impairment koss subsaquently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to hower of
revised recoverable amount or initial cost of asset less accumulated depreciation (if any) to date,
Reversal of impairment loss is recognized as income.

5.16 Revenue recognition

For each sale transaction, purchase order forms a contract between the Group and a customer and the
goods to be delivered under that contract are the Group's identified performance obligation, the contract
contains determined and allocated transaction price. The Group satisfies a performance obligation on
delivery of goods to the customer and recognizes the revenue.

Revenue murabaha is recognized as per the requirements of the Islamic Financial Accounting Standards
(IFASs). Repayment schedule is agreed at the start. Payments are usually due over the period of contract
at different dates.

- Profit / return on deposits | investments is recognized on accrual basis,
- Murabaha profit:
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Profit on transactions under murabaha arrangements is recognized on a pro-rata basis taking into
account the elapsed duration for payment of murabaha amounts payable by the customer. Profit not due
for payment in the current year is deferred by accounting for uneamed murabaha income with
corresponding credit to deferred murabaha income which is recorded as a liability. The same is then
recognized as revenue on a time proportionate basis as and when the due dates approach for payment
of recoverable amounts by the customers.

- Musharaka management fee is recognized on accrual basis,

- Profit on musharaka financing is recognized on declaration of profit by musharaka partners on
accrual basis.

- Realized capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the profit and loss
account on the date at which the transaction takes place.

- Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.
5.17 Taxation and levy
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year at the current rate of taxation after
taking into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, If any. Tax charge for the
current year is determined in accordance with the prevailing laws for taxation. The charge for current tax
is calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The charge for the
current tax also indudes adjustments relating to prior years, if necessary, arising from assessmenis
finalized during the year.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and llabilities for financial reporting purposes and the tax base
used in computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to
apply to the year when the differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Levy

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount
paid / payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income or any minimum tax which is not
adjustable against future income tax liability is classified as levy in the statement of profit and loss as
these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 12/1AS 37,
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5.18 Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any
of the Group's ather components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the
Group Management Company's Chief Executive Officer and Board of Directors to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
informaticn is available. In review and evaluation performance process, the business is considered as a
single operating segment and the Group's business is evaluated on an overall basis other than
musharaka arrangement with joint venture partner which s monitored separately.

Segment results that are reported for review and performance evaluation incude items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items
comprise malnly corporate assets, administrative expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire Property and equipment
and intangible assets other than goodwill.

5.12 Employee benefits
a) Defined contribution plan
The Group operates approved funded contributory provident fund scheme for all its employees. Equal
monthly contributions are made both by the Group and the employees at the rate of 8.33% percent
per annum of the basic salary.
b} Compensated absences

The Group accounts for the liability in respect of employess” compensated absences in the year in
which they are earned.

5.20 Foreign currency translation

Forelgn currency transactions are recorded using the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupee
using the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the ssttlement of foreign currency transactions and on translation of monetary asssts and liabilities
denominated in forelgn currencies at reporting date are recognized in the profit or loss.

5.21 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

5.22 Profit distributions and appropriations
Profit distributions are recognized as a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the year in
which these are approved. Transfers to statutory reserve and the mandatory appropriations as may be
required by law are recognized in the year to which these relate.

. _Ek®
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5.23 Certificate capital and earning per certificate

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per certificate data for its ordinary certificates. Basic
earmnings per certificate is caloulated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate
holders of the Group by the weighted average number of certificates outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per certificate is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate
holders and the weighted average number of ordinary certificates outstanding for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary certificates.

5.24 Contingencies

Contingencies are disclosed when the Group has possible obligation that arises from past event and
whose existence will be confirmed only by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of entity, or a present obligation that arises from past event but is
not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of recourse embodying economic benefit will be
required to settle the obligation or, when amount of obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

5.25 Related party transactions
All related party transactions are carried out by the Group on arm's length basis.
5.26 Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables

Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables are stated initialky at fair value and subseguenthy
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS LI R tﬂum} St
Year ended June 30,
At beginning of the year 205,924 294176
Amortization charge for the year (61,777) (88,252)
Carrying amount 144,147 205,924
As at June 30,
Cost 2,976,738 2,976,738
Accumulated amortization (2,832,591) (2,770,814)
Carrying amount 144,147 205,924
Rate of amortization per annum (%) 30 30
2025 2024
8. MURABAHA FINANCING - SECURED Note ======-- (RUpees) --—---
Considered good 48,346,558 76,717 344
Considered doubtful 256,661 2,115,568
Suspended income 8.7 (1,146,416) (1,255,341}
47,456,803 77577571
Less: Provision for doubtful recoveries B.4 (256,661) (2,115,568}
47,200,142 75,462,003
Less: Current portion {27,796,568) (43,479,040}
Non-current portion 19,403,574 31,982,963

B.1 The Group has sold goods under Murabaha arrangements whereby payment is deferred along with specified profit margin.
Murabaha sale is recefvable in installments, These arrangements are secured by way of hypothecation | pledge of stocks,
mortgage of properties, demand promissary notes, charge on assets and personal guarantees, The combined forced sales
value (FSV) of the underlying assets as security amounts to Rs. 216.913 million (2024: Rs, 373.947 million) in aggregate.

B.2 These faclities have various maturity dates up to September 28, 2027, Effective profit rate on these arrangements ranges
from 10.5% to 15% (2024: 18% to 26%).

B3 As fully explained in note 5.7 the Group applies IFRS-9 Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model to evaluate the provisioning
impact.

I o
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8.4 Movement in provision for doubtful recoveries sessssas [AUPRAS) ========
Opening balance 2,115, 568 2. 388,334
Charge for the yoar - 36T 425
Reversal made during the year {480,680) (B40,181)
Write aff during the year (1,378,227 -
(1,858,907) (272,756)
Closing balanoe 256,661 2,115,568
8.5 Contractual installments receivable on Murabaha financing facilities:
| Principal ||7_ Profit || Total |
2025 Em———— s PTT) p—
Owerdue 256,661 - 256,661
Due within one year 23,627 T4 5,168 784 27,796,568
Due after one yvear but within five years 16,040, 586 3,362 988 18,403,574
Due after five years = - -
38,925,031 B,531,772 4?.42&.
[ Principal || Proft [  Total |
2024 - (Rupees) —---—
Dwerdue 2,115,568 - 2,115,568
Due within one year 36,339,792 7,139,248 43,479,040
Due after one year but within five years 232,584,921 9,398, 042 31,982 963
Due after five yoars = - =
61,040,281 16,537,290 TrEIT M

B.6 The above except for owerdue balance represents instaliments receivable by the Group in future wears in respect of
Murabaha financing facilities given under long-term arrangemenks.

2025 2024
8.7 sSuspended income Mote csssszs (RUPERE]) ==s=s===
Opening balanca 1,255,341 766,692
Reversal of suspanded income 21.1 {500,394)
Transferred bo susponse incomes 21.1 967,255 4B8 &9
Write off during the yvear {575, 786)
Closang balance 1,146,416 13255..341
9. MUSHARAKA FINANCING - SECURED
Musharaka agreesments for:
Considerad good:
Food products 9.1 = 12,000,000
= 12,000,000
Considered doubtful:
Baoks printing - 11 9.2 13,949,054 13,940 054
Less; Provision for doubdful recoveries &4 = =
13,949,054 25,940,054
Less: Current partion of musharaka financing (13,945 054)

12,240 054)
z SEAILIREC
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9.1 The Group has entered into a Musharaka arrangement with Musharaka partner for distribution of food products like
rhilk, biscwits ete. The Group's share of rvestment s 30% of the total financing required by Musharaka partrer and
profit on investrment i shared in the ratio of 65:35 (2024: 65:35) bebtween Group and Musharaka partner
respectivaly. This financing is secured by way of mortgage of property, The financing has been matured and settied
dusring the year,

8.2 Dauring the preceding years, the Group signed a Musharaka arrangement amounting to Rs, 20 millicn for printing of
272,766 books with a Musharaka partner. The peofit on the investment is shared in the ratic of 64.09:35,.91 (2024:
6<1.05: 35,91 ) betwesn Group and the Musharaka partner respectivaly. The financing Is securad by way of mortoagn
of immoveabée property. This arangement was fuffilled in prior years and the Group s in process o recover the
principle and profit share as per agreement, from the Musharaka partner.

a3 The forced sales value (FSV) of the underfying assets as security against musharaka financing amounts to Rs. 3732
million (2024: Rs. 105,14 million) in aggregate.

.4 Mo provision has been recognized dee to the avaeilability of the forced sale value benefit of the collateral held as
security against Mnancing, Furthermaore, as fully explained in note 5.7 the Growp also applies Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) moded oo evaluate the provisioning impact, Consequently, as per the BOL model under IFRS 9, the impairmssnt
impact is materially same to the provisioning reguirements under Group Regulations, 2021,

2025
2.5 Contractual installments receivable on Musharmka financing facilities: memmmmes LIRS )
Dst= weithin ome year 13,949,054 13,5495, 0154
Due after one year S SN T F2 1 N1V
—13,942.034 _ 22943054

1o. LOAN TO EMPLOYEES - SECURED
Laan tx employess 369,503 595,503

Less: Current portion of loan o employees !1%“! (210,000}

——

10.1 This represents profit free personal loans provided o employees of Group ranging from Rs. 0003 million to Bz 0.5
rmillion. These are repayable over 8 maximom period of 10 years and secered against their provadent fund balanoes.

2025 2024
ii. TRADE DEBTORS - UNSECURED Mot S— {Rupzes)

Considered good 262,671,367 175,324,983

Considered doubtful m'!ﬁ ﬂ'%g
11.1 141.1 175, 75,

Less: allowances for expected credit loss

Balarsoe &5 at July 1, G460 B25 4,441,612

Recagnized during the year = 428,416

Bad debts written off during the year = {4, 00, 303

Balance as at June 30, 4649 825

R LT VY LY S WP e I
11.1 Ageing analysis of trade debtors are as follows:
Mot yat due 237,289 640 164,972,509
Upto 30 days 21,120,078 4,290, 306
31 ko S0 denes 2,396,903 5,112,191
91 days bo 180 days - -
More than 180 days 2,335 571 A1% 500
R T L2 V5 S =
12, ADVAMNCES, PREFAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Acvance against purchase of stock 2,112,199 -
Advance against expanses 4,921,775 114,914
Advance againal salaries = 58,000
Shart-term prepayments GEG, 534 Fied, Bk
Sales taw receivable B.087.851 5914, 484
Dasn from AML project 12.1 15,637,113 14,754,733
Other receivatles 122 3310988 L350, 170

—Sasssael _ giiso
I o7
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12,1  This includes operational expenses borne by the Group on behalf of the AML project. The Group has entered into an
arrangement with an individual b0 engage in a business segment under the name and sbyde of "FPM AMLSCFT
Solutions," serving the corporate and financial sector, The Group is responsible Tor managing the project’s operations
a5 the "Modarib” and may temporarily advance upto Rs, 16 million to the project, while the other party is responsible
tor investing im the project as the “Rabb-ul-Maal.® The net profit from this contract is shared between the Modarib
and Rabb-ul-Maal in a ratio of G040 respectively. The movement in balance due to / (from} &ML project i as under:

2025 2024

-------- [RUpees) --------
Opening balance 14,754,723 8,693 703
Add: Payments made during the wear 18,387,571 23,242.478
Less: Recovered from the project {17,505,180) [17,181,458)
Cosing balance 15,637,114 14,754,723

**

The AML project has consistently incurred losses since its mception. In adherence to the Islamic principle of Group
financing, these bosses shall be bome by the Rabb-ul-Maal, Consequently, no loss have been recorded in the Group's
books.

12.2  This includes Bs, 1.2 million deducted directly from the bank account of the Group on the instruction of the Federal
Board of Revenue (FBR} wvide letter no. CIR/Zone-L/CRTOKHI 2016/25494 dated December 15, 2016 on account of
non deduction af withhalding tax, {refer Nobe 26).

2025 2024

13. SHORT TERM MURABAHA FINANCING - SECURED @ ===meee- {Rupees) --—----—-
Considered good 4,791,668 -
Congidersd doulstTul = =
4,791,668 -
Less: Pravision for doubtful recoveries = =
4,791 668 -

13.1 Murabaha sale price & recedvable in installments. Efective profit rate on these arangements ranges from 15%
{2024 11% to 14%) per annum receivable on agreed terms. Thesa financing are secured by way of mortgage of
properties, hypothecation of goods and demand promissory notes. The forced sabes value (FSW) of the underlying
assets a5 security amounts to Rs. 215,596 million (2024; Nil) in aggregate,

2025 2024

14. CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS Mote —------- [Rupees) --------
Current portion of murabaha financing 8 27 . 796,568 43479, 040
Current portion of musharaka financing 9 13,949,053 13,949,054
Current portion of laens to employeas 0 138, 000 210,000

15. SHORT-TERM DEPOSIT

Deposits 2,738,994 2,963,004
Less: Provision for doubtful recovesies 15.1 {2,482 194) {1, 1060, e}
256,800 1,863,904

15.1 Movement in provision for doubtful recoveries

Balance &= at July 01, 1,100,000 -
Charge for the year 194 1100000
Balanoe as at June 30, 2483194
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2025 2024
16, ACCRUED PROFIT Motea @ ==eeeeee (RUpQESE) ========
Profit receivable on musharaka financing - 049, 377
Profit receivable on bank deposits 70,332 SH3, 199
70,332 1,532 576
17. SHORT TERM INVESTMEMT
At fair valug through profit or loss
Fak Catar-daily dividend plan 17.1 22&“5 EIHBEEEQ
17.1 Movement in short term investment
Opening balanos 21,308,669 20,776,415
Add: Purchase during e year = -
Add: Dividend Reimvested {Dhddend-met of tax) 2,136,247 3,532,254
Less: Redempison during the year bl {3,000, 0007
Closang balance 3'3;434:?15 11I3DB‘559

This represents investment ina mutueal fund comprising 234, 349%, 16 units (20249; 213087 units) at MAY of Rs, 100 per
wnit (2024; Fs, 100 per unit),

2025 2024
18.  CASH AND BANK BALANCES Mote —eeeeee (RUPEES) ==nnmman
Cash in hand 54,533 B? 672
Cash at banks
- Cufrent aoosunts
- State Bandk of Pakistan 31,318 34,188
- e banks 18.1 9,530,961 9. 103,765
= Drepasit acoounts 18.2 & 18.3 ﬁETI?BE 3?I-EEIE=EHJB

47 47,123,633

18.1  This include Rs, 0,213 million ( 2024; Rs. 0,563 million) in respect of FPM-AML projoect. (refer Mote 12.1),

18.2 This mcludes Rs, 3.012 milkon (2024; /A5, 5166 million) in respect of Redemption Reserve Fund established on
account of Cartificate of Musharaka,

1B.3  These carries profit rate in respect of deposit aceounts ranging from 4.5% to 020 (2024: 11.01% te 21.55%) per
AU,

19, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

2025 2024 20258 2024
{Mumber of certificates) S Y. P m—
Certificates of Rupees 10 each fully padd
11,988,930 11,569,920 in cash. 119,899, 298 119,899,298
Bonus certificates issued of Rupess 10
1,798,480 1,758, 450 each, 17,984, 895 17,9684 895
1378830 788,32 137882393 _ 97684

191  As at June 30, 2025, Paramount Investments Limited (the Group Management Company) hobds 14.26% (2024
14.26%) representing 1,965,768 certificates (2024: 1,965,768 certilicates) of the Group.

I o0
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2025 2024
20. CAPITAL RESERVES Note —=—em==- (RUpEES]) —=---—
Statulory regene 20.1 111,160,598 37,615,345
Merger reserve 202 1535160 1035160
—213.093.758  ____ 89,550,303

20.1 Statutory reserve represents profit set aside o comply with the Group Regulations issweed by the SECP wide S.RLO,
F8I)F2021 dated March 05, 2021. These Regulations require Group which & not compliant with minimum equity
reguirements as provided in the regulations, shall create reserve fund to which shall credit an amount equivalent to 100%:
of of s annual after-tax profit till such time the manimam equity reguirements are complied with, Curing the year, the
Group transferred 100% of its after tax profits amounting to Bs. 23,54 million (2024; Rs. 28,54 million),

20.2  [n accordance with decision of the Honourable High Cowrt of Sindh as on December 08, 2004, the First Matonal Modaraba
{FMM) was menged with the Group, The Group received a sum of Rs. 10,57 millkon from FHM, incheding Rs, §.66 millkon as
a certificate capital and Fs. 1.94 million as capital reserve,

2025 2024
21. DEFERRED INCOME Mobe =——=== [Rupses) —---—
Deferred murabaha income 21.1 B, 730,348 15,101 883
8,730,348 15,101,882
Less: Current maturity of deferred incorme (5,367, 360) {7,130, 248
N Fr- -7 152 I— - =
21.1 Deferred murabaha income
Balarce ag at 01 July 15,101,882 18,010, 458
Add: Deferred income for the year ¥ 327 4496 100, 736,820
Less: Income recognized during the year (13,232,119) (14,065,787
Less: Transferred [0 suspense income (967,255) {4BB,549)
Add: Reversal of suspended income 500,354 Z
Balance as at 30 June 8730348 ____ oo
22, CERTIFICATES OF MUSHARAKA
Balance as at July 01, 168,400,000 167,500, 000
Issued during the year 35,700,000 26,375, 00d
Redesmed duwring the year ___{30,725.000) [25,475 ()
173,375,000 168,400,000
Less: ourrent maturity of cerbficates of musharaka {41, 500 0000 (47,250, 0l
Balance as at June 30, 131,875,000

22.1  [n accordance with the Modaraba Regulations 2021 ({the "Regulations™) Issued by the SECP through S0 2B4(1)/2021
dated March 5, 2021, the authority to issue Certificabes of Musharaka (COM) by a Modaraba will be automatically
suspended if the Modaraba becomes non-compliant with any of the condidons owtlined in Regulaton 1% of the
Regulations. However, existing Modaraba's with valid permissions to isswe COM, which are non-compliant, are required to
achieva compliance within one year of the effective dabe of these regulations provided that, during this one-year interim
period, the total COM of such Modaraba will be capped at the existing level, |.e., the outstanding balance as of the dabe the
regulations came into force,

On Awguest 15, 2022, the SECE, wa 5.R.0, 1547(1) 2022, amended these regulations. These amendments extend the
compliance period to three years in cases of non-compliance with the conditions outined in Regulabon 17(1) subject to
certain condigons, The Modaraba, based on legal advice, understands that the compliance pericd for Regulaton 19 is also
considered as extended to 3 years given the conditions of Regulation 19 are that of Regulation 171},

As the extended timelines has also bpsed on August 14, 2025 and the Modaraba is non-compliant with the credit rating
and minimem eguety reguirements as outlined in Regulations 17 and 19, the Modaraba bas formally filed renewal
application with the Registrar Modaraba. Based on the cormespondence with the Regulator, the management is confident
that the renewal application would be accepted in favor of Modaraba,
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22,2 These certificates have different denominations and are repayable within theee months to fve years, The expected share of
profit on these certificates ranges from 9.5% to 14.5% (2024: 8.5% o 14.5%) per annum,

22.3 A Redemphion Resense Fund is established on account of Certificate of Musharaka {refer Moke 17 & 18.2),

2025 2024

23, CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES e e (Rupeas) ========
Due to associated undertakings 105,019 2BE, 837
Creditors 18,080,085 4,314,580
Becrued expenses 1,973,269 1,843,534
Sindh workers' welfare fund 3,162 840 24,510,191
Withhaolding income: tax 3,117 495 3,287 505
Share of modarib payable under FPM petro = 1,915,647
Payabde to provident fund 36,127 -
Others 3,967 623 1,281,083

3042457 15,438,517

24. CERTIFICATE OF MUSHARAKA - MATURED AND PAYABLE

This regresents amount payable to legal successors of mwsharaka holders which ks due bul uncleémed duee to pending
docurmentation on death of the respective musharaka holders.

25, ACCRUED PROFIT OM CERTIFICATES OF MUSHARAKA

Balamce as at July 01,
Add: Accrued during the year
Less: Paid during the year

2025 2024

mmwram fm} mrrmmme

3,514,280 3,613,638
22,135,622 21,504,057

{22,318 534} (21 603 415}

Balance as at June 30, —_—e 331 368 2,514 280
26, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
a) Contingencies
Hame of the court, agency or | Description of the proceedings and relief
thorit ht Principle Parties | Date instituted

i Commissioner Tnland Revenue  During the prior year, the Sindh Revenue Boand

Commissioner

(SAB} has raised accumulated demand of Rs. (Appeals) SRE and

.06 million vide orders £29 of 201%, 632 of
2015, 635 of 2019 and 636 of 2019 dabed July
19, 2019, July 23, 2019, July 25, 2019 and July
o, 2019, on the grounds that the Group's
activities fall under tariffs 9809, 9322, 9822.2
and 99223 of Second Schedule of the Sindh
Sabes Tax on Sendces Act, 20011 (the Act).The
Aggistant  Cormmissioner  of  Sindh  Renenue
Board (SRB) after prowiding opportunity of
being meard to Group, issued order vide 915
dated April  2¥, 2022, whereby the
Commissioner demanded the sales tax and
penalty amaunting o B, 14.81 rmillion and 063
million respectivaly for the tax periods July 2001
to June 2017 on account of non-chargeability of
Sindh Sales Tax against services. The Group
has filed appesl before the Commissioner
Appeals SRB and did not record Bny provision
for this matter, as thelr tax advisor is confident
that the pending appeal will be decided in the
Group's favaur,

Modaraba

July 19, 2019

I 101
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Nama of the court, agency or | Description of the procesdings and reliaf Principle Parties | Date institutad

autharity sought
] Cormmissioner Inland Revenue  The Growp recelved a show cause notice C. Mo,  Federal Board of
DCTR S Unit-05R-CTR- 25058 3 Zone- Revenue and April 28, 2025

IVCTOMKHL4E dated Apell 2B, 2025 under Maodaraba
section 11(E} of the Sales Tax Act 1990,

refating to input @x adjustments clalimed during

the bax period from July 2021 to March 2025,

The Group submitted writhen replies against the
show  cause notoe, Subseguently, the CIR
passed an order daiming the input tax of Rs
18.62 millien along with penalty of Bs. 1862
million undér section 33{11) and a default
surcharge (bo be calculated at the bme of final
payment).

The Group, has filed &n appeal under section 45
B of the Sales Tax Act 19490 against the Order-
im-Original 162 deted June 18, 2025
Considaring the factual position and based on
the advice of the tax counsel, the managemsnt

s confident of a positive outcome and hence no
accrual hes been recorded in the books of

acopunts.

Hame of the court, agency or | Description of the proceedings and relicf
authaority sought

iii Commissioner [nland Revenue  An amownt of @5, 1.2 million has been deducted  Federal Board of

frim the bank sccount of the Group on the  Peévenue snd
instructions of the FBR vide leter #CIRYZone- Modaraba
1MRTOMMRIF2016/2544 daled December 15,
2016 on  account of non  dedection of
withiwlding tax. The matisr was Laken W
Commissioner  [nland Revenus {Appeal 100,
Karachi who remanded back the case o ha
officer with directions to provide an opportunity
of being heard o the Appellanl. The worthy
Commissigner In ks Order wide no. 26/2017
dated Januwary 26, 2017 has remanded the
matter to the revenue, Managemant is confident
that the deducted amount will be refunded,
therefore, no gxpense has been booked in this
regard.

Principle Parties | Date instituted

December 15,
2016

2025 2024
[+)] Commitmeants Mota mmmeeee- [RUpRES) —--m———

Letter of Guarantees = 124 300

27, INCOME FROM TRADING OPFERATIONS

Incewme fram:
- FPM Petra £F.1 81,720,354 86,664,917
= FPM Solution £72 2,096,869

81,790,354 38,983, 756

sy |
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2025 2024
27.1  Income from FPM petro Mote &~ ======== (RUpB8s5) ========
Resvenue - net 27.1.1 E80.407, 261 B4R, 977 083
Less: Direct costs
Cost of sales 27.1.2 428 083,287 410,616, 724
Transpartation charges 27,507,815 3,580,888
Labowsr charges 1,582,840 1,926,712
Laby besting F2,850
Share of modarit
—A98.61690F A6 087 166
—b P02 B6804017

2F.1.1 This represents revenoe (net of sales tax) generated from chemical business of FPM Potro Senices, Sales tax charged on
sales tax invoioes issued during the year in aggregate amounted to Rs. 104.26 million {2024: Rs. 99.44 million).

2025 2024
27.1.2 Costofsales ~—  esse==== [m} [RU—
Opening stock 24,102,663 37,779,122
Purchases 413,455,673 306,940, 265
Less: closing stock ilgd?E!gt IHIIMEEE
Cost of sales —225,083,257 10616774
7.2 Income from FPM solution
Revenue - net - 3,974,177
Less: cost of revenue - 1,875,308
- £.028.869

27.2.1 This represents revenue (net of Sindh Sales Tax on Services) generated from project power sodution business of FPM
Solutsons, This ncludes income from Service Level Agreements (SLA) entered into by FPM Solutions with the client to
provide services in respect of stand by generators, UPS and other power back up solutions, Sindh sales tax on senices
charged on sakes tax involoes (sswed during the year in aggregate amounted to Ml {2024 Rs, 0,929 million},

2025 2024

ZB. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES Mobe r———— {Rupees)
Salaries, allowances and banafits 2B.1 20,836,502 18,550,762
Litilities 1,759,309 2,33R, 144
Repairs and maintenance 6F 7,296 593 498
Takaful 1,602,097 &0, 676
Rent, rates amd taxes 2B.2 3,133,236 2,597 253
Traveling and corveyance 4,201,956 5,057 948
Comrmunications 794,843 1,200, 4E8
Printing and stationeny 396,980 407,950
Auditors' remumeration 28.3 1,133,622 926,000
Legal and professional 865,110 427,360
Feas and subscriptions 4,874,436 4,500, 236
Bad debts whitten-off - 3,730,868
Stock in trade- written off - 113,480
News papers and pericdicals 11,260 o, 560
Advertisement and publicity 72,000 36,000
Depreciation and amortization 4,281,697 2,369,720
Loss on disposal of fixed asset - -
Otivers 1,731,803 1,606,806
6372156 43,702,749
28.1  Salaries, allowances and benefits incuede 0.6 million Bs. (2024 Rs. 0.64 million) on accownt of the Group's contribution
to the staff provident fund,

P ez e
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28.2 This includes Rs. 1,13 million charge by director (2024: Rs, 1,05 millicn) in respect of rent for office premises.

2025 2024

28.3 Auditors' remuneration —-m—m-—- (RUp&es) --—--—-
Statutory audit fes 500,815 590,815
Half yearly review fee 118,148 118,148
Certification fes 102037 102,037
annual shariab acdit fee 130,000 =
Consalidation fee 115,000 115,000
S5T 77622 -

1,133,622 926,000

29. OTHER INCOME

Financial assets - shariah compliant

Profit on bank deposits 2,218,006 3,681,168

Dividend income 2,846,762 4,145,849

Qther 1,011,733 133

Mon-financial assets

Others 1,544,342 367,952
7,620,843 8,195,102

30. FINAMCIAL CHARGES

Profit on certificates of musharaka 22,135,622 21,504,057
Bank charges 10,379 52,977
22,146,001 21,557,034

31. MODARABA COMPANY'S MAMAGEMENT FEE

The Group Management Company s entitled to a remuneration for services rendered to the Modaraba under the
provisions of the Modaraba Companies and Modarabas {Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 upbo a mascimum of
10% per annum of the annual net profits of the Modaraba, The fee for the year ended June 30, 2025 has been
recognized at 10% (2024; 10%) of profit for the year,

2025 2024

32. LEVY AND TAXATION Note ER— {Rupees) --------
Levy 32.1 711,691 621,877
Taxation 32.2 7,369,863 11,495,250

HHEH IEIII?I'L'-!?

32.1 This represents portion of final tax paid under Income Tax Ordinance (ITO, 2001), representing levy in berms of
requirements of IFRIC 21/1AS 37,

32.2 TAMNATION 2025 2024
Mote memmsses (RAUPEES) ===s====
Current tax 7,531,912 10,881,326
Prior year tax {162,049) 613,924
7,369,863 11,495,250
Deferred tax 323 = -
7,369,863 11,495 250
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Relationship between accounting profit and tax Note  ~— ===eeee- (Rupees) --=-----
EXpEnse
Accounting profit 30,914,874 39,869,709
Tax at applicable rate of 29% B,965,313 11,562,216
Effect of:
Accelerated depreciation 67,374 24,292
Prowvision fior expected credit loss 35,561 35,565
Prior year (162,049) B13,924
Other (1,536,336) (789,488)
7,369 863 11,446,509
32.3 DEFERRED TAX (ASSET) / LIABILITY
Defarred tax asset comprises of:
[Deductible) temporary differences on;
Murabaha financing (118,815) (177,541)
Trade debtors (122,623) (122,638)
Creditors, accrued and other liabllities (1,639,144) {1,513,365)
(1,880,582) (1,813,544)
Deferred tax liability comprises of:
Taxable temporary differences on:
Fixed assets 566,211 || 594,719 |
(1,314,370) (1,218,825)
Unrecognized deferred tax asset 324 1,314,370 1,218,825
As at 30 June = =

324

33,

331

Deferred tax asset as at June 30, 2025 to the extent of Rs, 1.31 million {June 30, 2024: Rs. 1.22 million) has not
been recognized as the Group is wncertain about the timing and axtent of future taxable profits against which such
benefits can be utillzed.

EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED 2025 2024

Prafit for the year (Rupees) 23,545,011 28,374,459
Weighted average number of cerificates 13,788,420 13,788,420
Earnings per certificate - basic and diluted (Rupees) 1.708 2.058

There & no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per certificate of the Group, since there are no convertible
instruments in issue as at June 30, 2025 (2024 NI} which would have any effect on the earnings per certificate if
the option to convert is exerdised.
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34. CHAMNGES ARISING FROM FIMANCIMNG ACTIVITIES

Financing Fimancing cash Non Cash
2025 July 1, 2024 il 1 hanges Jurne 30, 2025
{Rupeas)
Unclaimed profit
distributions 18,729,685 = {109,445} = 18,620,240
Accrued pralfit on
certificates of
riusharaka 3,514,280 = (22,318,534) 22,135,622 3,331,368
COM matured
parties 2,800,000 = = 2,800,000
Certificstes of
musharaka 168,400,000 35,700,000 {30,725 000) - 173,375,000
Financing Financing cash Mon Cash
2024 July 1, 2023 cash infl £fl I s June 30, 2024
(Rupees)
Unclaimed profit
distributions 19,234,855 - (505,170) - 18,729,685
Accrued profit on
certificates of
miwisharaka 3,613 638 = (21.603.415) 21,504,057 3,514,280
CiOM matured
parties 9,850,000 - {7.050,3007% 2,500,000
Certificates of
rmusharaka 167,500,000 26,375,000 (254750000 = 168,400,000
35. REMUNERATION OF OFFICERS AND OTHER EMPLOYEES
2025 2024
O Other O Other
"[J employees . employees
mmmmcnes [RUPBES) ======x= msmmmscs [RUPEES]) ====== --
Managerial remunsration 6,206,462 8,676,410 5,833,219 8,507,924
Allowances B91,754 2,950,581 7FHS, 694 2,123,248
Provident fund 314,823 363,164 307,451 331,662
EOQBI BB, B00D 226,200 14,520 238,180
Cithers 127,012 901,296 2,387 715,477
7,718,852 13,117,650 6,043,271 11,916,491
Humber of person 4 i3 4 13
35.1 Theree afficers are provided free use of the Group's cars incuding fuel and insurance.
35.2 Mo remunerabion paid bo the directors of the Group Management Company for the year ended June 30, 2025 (2024;

Nil).

I 106 [



https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download

FIRST PARAMOUNT

"y
o,
B
el
7
o
]
b
]
b
u.-.l..r
b
i
-
s
T
o
g
-y
oy
b
o
r
=
[T,
i

o
2
e
=+
i
it
L
=
=
Lt
=
i)
=
L
s
=
e
N
=
c
=L
—

irst "

'SE E0N U PRS0RSE 5| S0 40 Gusiidiod jpuucsiad Juaweieuew Ay of uogesuadion Jo 9] T'9E

|

(voc'e) EfRIRSNL puny JUEACld

BT
0 AEDUNET U0 1040 panoy Saadnpdug - paywry
(0000°T) (000081 sy sy P RRPMAPIR e noweey Spuny e S
DOB'LTZ D08‘L1T ysodap Awroeg  [RULOSIRA JuRwRbeUEw A3y |Bg0] Weepey SNTPRN(
(££R'987) (6TD'S0T) apefed g SHumoy LD HATHT payn
L% Ju
SIUBLISALT JUNMUEIES PR pumiiy '
5707 '0E Bunf 18 se aouejeg
L05'TET ¥ST'LET ERIRYSN st puMY JLEPLDLG
10 SeyE0 uo ped Jyoy /R saadopdus - pepwn
217669 LBE'LL9 pinjapouognquuy PR pap SWBULSH] UOWRIES  SPUT) JURLANRI YEIS A
o678 LTFTTO pied Wy dW 0 S Ay F500 gy INyEqes rods s upesg
; [dDi)
BITLZ0 TSTBETT PRANEY o osiad yawabeuew fay [EgoY weepeN SR
T95'9EH'E THI'LOB'E seah ay) Bupnp apew suauue
—_— peQILIN
cebala ¥ ETR'STOE 23] Juawabeusy  sHUPOy ARYLED HATHT SYUNSAN] JUNWeIEg Auedwr Juswebeuey
ueak aup Bupnp suogoesues]
SN ¥ ) p— uogoesURL Jo Jumpey diysuonep josiseg  Aped pagejay jo awey BRIEPOY
¥TOT STOT L diysuofyejay

1SMOIJ0) 52 BB SLBILENENS
[BOURLY U Ul ABUMESE PRSOPSIP A|EIYIR0S LSO SARL U3IUM 2S04 URyY) S0 “Sanued PRRU UIM SUCGIRSURD 30 IR “SaTed PRJER SHOLRA LM SUCKIESUED
1IN0 SBULED S53UEN] J0 35IN00 [BULIOU 31 W dnous ay) ‘lruucelad Juewsbeuew A2y pue shucepspun pxeDosse ‘Auedwiod Juswsabeuew |0 esLdW0d segued pegequ ay|

SILLYVd Q3LVI3Y HLIM NOLLDVSNYYL ‘"9


https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download

N—i
-
- =] .
S
mnm S R (195 608 61) (06L 161 £L) £10'%86/0ET S3E)) Wallbas
1
~ E _—
, ”_ - 190'+66101 P 968 2L BOL 126 661 Spasse Jualbes
s
- [szadny]
[E01 SEURO 0013 Weld Bupueuy
_ YI0L _
(ETY'667 LET) (SL6:010'12) (98'581'92T) (025'207'06) sangey| Wawbag
PLTTLI 0TS 66 TI0 LT 298891 L0V £19°01516 sjasse Jawbag
(ssadny)
|80l sRo 0ad Wdd Burueuly
_ sz0t |

saii|igel| pue sjasse Jualubag

MO papasd 5 syuwies apgeyndau s dnos 2y Buguebas vonewwoy;

"dnoug A Ag awoq 3

LS 550] SB BUalM 0556 JO AU Jyaud 0] PRAOUS S| P Bnuan Bu) PRouRwy Sey dnoug au Juauabuee ay) Jad S STOZ AT ABNUGRY Wl DayE L
waloid sug papess sey dnoss) AgevoqeuiEgs pue ARUCGEU SIOP3S JURRYP 0F SuUsU0dCD (EXUSLD snoueh Jo uojswosd Ul pabefiua saowss agad |
SRS Oad Wdd

ey
EYRIBYSIU PUB BORIEPOW ‘ENEIEVSTIL BUNSIUIUIP ‘BYBqEI S3pNpul sanmoey Dupueuld "susd ari0d0 pue sienpivpu) 0d Budueuy sapivaud dnoig

Bupueuly

P
g
e
T
i

...M
i~
L]

Tl

=

g

el
P
-
-
el
Il.
S
g
oy
bing
S
=
b
sy
bt

-
=
g

)
=3

s
)
i
=

=
L
=
3
s

L

ot

L

=
=

=

Tt

haod 5 dnoug awg sad se smayoj se aue ualwas gepoda sdnais 3y

First

SINIWD3S SSANISNE LNOAV NOLLVWHOANI



https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download

=
=
=
Tad
e o
fa.|
-~
e
T
e
... s
Bt
i
e
el
-l
-
s
B
-n’
[
=
[Pt
o
P
o
pad
*
_..“ e

=
=
=
=
i
b3
=
=
¥
7
m
L=
LL
=
=
L
A
=
<

FIRST PARAMOUNT

MENATARS

TIO'SES'EL (Z6T'STS) 0Bt FEY'TL (LLT'vBE'BY) ek AU 1op Jgoud
(e98'69E°2) (e98's0E°2) 18U -uogexe),
vLB'YI6'0E (z61'518) 08P FIY'TL (¥1r'vT0'TH) XEY SU00U| A10j30 Judid
(T69'T1L) (Te9'T1L) fina)
595'979'TE (z61'518) 0Bt v TL (£z2'T0E DF) AASK BB XE) 30011 210130 140k
(8¥9'759) 90E'E (65¢'8LF'T) S05'7e8 Py BRI SIPOM DU
ETT'6LT'TE (86+'815) BEG'TT6'EL (gzT'szT'TH)
(ez8'sz9'e) B9E'BT (199'e1z'8) 0LY'695'Y 3a) Juauabeuau shuediio) Roesepoy
9E0'506'SE (998'0¢S) 009'9ET'78 (869'r69'sH)
(To0'ov122) (614) (856) (vze'vree) safiieys pueuy
LEO'TS0'8S (ev1'ags) 655'LET'TE (vLe0s5'eT)
EFB0TY'L ¥IT'e BOT'SLE'S TIS'GETT DU JHA0
(¥15'718) (¥15'T18) SBUBNECRI [GNOP K UOKAEL
(£90'686F¥s) (ree'zvs) (11a'vre'cos) (188'108 0%) sesliada Buneiade pue UoNROSAILIDY
TLL0E6'S6S 192°L0t08S 0TS'EZS'ST anuanzs Bugessdn
(saadny)
i#0L SIB0 oiyed Wdd Bupueuid
ST0Z

uzwbas ajgepodas Ag swnsas pue snuseal 5dnos) 2 o ssieue ue s Buime)od

s)nsaJ pue anuas Juawbas  g/E


https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download

. i
i
S
)
) .
"
"
L
AEREREL AR URARE R .

FIRST PARAMOUNT

MODARABA

i
L)

e
S
1y
o
Yo

—
Y
-
e

Tl

r—

Shed
P
b
Tl
L
ey
o
i
e
-
=
o

o

T

i

b
C )

4
o

|ﬂ|
o
=
=¥
it
P
i
=
m
i
=
!
=
kb
L%}
)
e
=
=L
ek

“eSPRLCBL el Eeeise  l09rIse1p
(0S2's64'TT) {05Z'56k'TT)
60L'698'6E (9£0'761°2) EB6'LIS'LL {orz'9st'0g)
(££8'T29) Leg'1e9)
995164 I (9£0'261°2) EB6'LTS'YL {EEE'vER'SE)
[99:'628) L0ETh (6SE'BLHT) FR'809
FLETZE TH (£9E'EET'T) T96'0B6'EL {£61'ept0g)
(2E6'609°F) S8k'6T7 (566 122 &) £EG'TRE'E
90£'1E6'S (898'79%2) LH6GITTR (pee'szR'eE)
(bE0ES5TT) (5] (besT) [
ObE'89%" L9 (TEET9'2) 105'122'28 {Deg'0Lz'zT)
T01'SE1°8 £20'62 B0'06E 0£9'SLL'S
(D99'ssT) (91e'gze) 0542t
(£22'049'608) (sTT'2£0%) (T66'GHT L5%) {e1r'sepag)
121611695 LETRIB'E EB0' L6 RS 198'£91'91
{saadmy)
Enl Sy 04 bidd Buueuy
¥I07

UDNEXE] Ja8 U044
1B -UOOEXE]
UCHEXEY S0 1L

fina

LDnENE) PUE A3 21020 10

PLINJ SUERRM SEALIOM. LUK,

23) Jessbeurw s uedwo? RgRRPON

sabieyd [eoueuly

AW S0
SALBW002 NAGROR J0) LoSA0L]
sasuadxa Gunessdo pue UoRRSILILDY

anuEea Bunessdn

I 110


https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download

First Paramount Madarala
(Anislamic Financial Institution) Y :

FIRST PARANOUNT
MODARABA

------ SimiaEr - pEAnni

38. RISK MANAGEMENT

38.1 Financial risk management

Tha Group's objective in managing rsk is the creation and protection of corificate holders” value. Risk is inherent in the Group's
activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily set up based on limits established by
the Group Management Comparny, the Group's constitutive doowments and the regulations and directives of the SECP, These limits
reflect the business strategy and market arvironment of the Group as well as the level of the risk that the Group (s willing to accept.
The Board of Directors of the Group Manegement Compary has oversll respansibility for the establishement and aversight af the
Group's risk management framework,

The Group has exposune to the following risks from its use of finandal instrurments:
- Credit risk
- Liguidity rigk
- Markel risk

{a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the ceunterparty Lo a financal instrurment will cause a financial lass Tor the Group by faling to discharge an
chligation, The risk s generally limited o outstanding amount against financing facilities and trade debts, The Group's policy is
anter o financial contracts in accordance with the risk management policies and the reguirements of the Modaraba rules and
reqgulations.

The carrying amount of these finandal assets represents the maximum credit exposune at the reporting date.,

2015 20214

""" {Rupees) —---—-
Murabaha financing 47,200,142 F5,462,003
Musharaka financing 132,949,054 25,849,054
Loan to employees 369,503 5o5, 503
Long-term deposils 7,700 7,700
Trade debsors 263,671,367 175,324 003
Advances ard other reosivables 19,148,102 16,352 853
Short tarm murabaha financing 4,791,668 -
Short term depasit 256,800 1,663,554
Aocruad profit 70,332 1,532,576
Shart term investment 23,434,916 21,308,669
Bank balances l_i&ﬁ'lﬁ 470,73

200 280 365,439,144
Description of collateral held

The Group holds security in the form af margege of progerties, hypothecation and pledge of goods and dersand pramissory nobas
against modaraba, murabaha, diminishing musharaka and musharaka invastments.

Concentration of credit risk

The Group manages credt risk and s concentration through diversification of activities to evoid wndue concentration of risks with
individuals, groups or specific industry segrments. For this purpose, the Group has established exposure Bmits for individuals | groups
and industrial sectors.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar
econormic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual ebligation o be simdarly effected by the changes in econamic,
palitical or other conditions, The Group belavas that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit sk, The Group's bankers ane
of good rating. Details of the industriad sector analysis of each financing are as follows:

. 11—


https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download

= oY 1
Paramaunt THodaraba
{Anvislamic Financial Institution)

Finst

FIHST PARAMOUNT
MODARABA
2025 2024

Rupeas W Riipees e
Chemikcal, fertilizer and phanmaceutical 17,030 637 25,7 3% 1,108,33% 1.06%
Fuel and energy 1,577,772 2.38% 4,840,810 4.63%
Faod, bobacos and beverages 14,032 397 21, 20%s 37 486,036 I5.BE%
Paper and board 26, 764, 420 4, 43% 26,925,056 25. 7 7%
Textile and Garments - 0.00% - 0.00%
Stel, engineering and autormobiles - 0.00%e - 000 %
Transportation and Cormmunication 630,980 95 19,267,982 18, 44%,
Others 6,161,319 9.31% 14,847,679 14.21%

ulmrlm 1009 lﬂil-i-q-?EEl 1 0%

Modaraba's operations are restnicted to Pakistan onby.

Credit risk rating:

The credit quality of balances with banks that are neither past due nor imgaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings {If available) or to historical mformation about counterparty default rate:

2025 2024
. S e s i
Hatib Bank Lirmited LTS A1+ PADRA 42F 6TE 87257
Hatib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al A1+ PACRA 10,725,612 22,099 193
Faysal Bark Limibed b, Al+ PACRA 296,797 88E,05%
Meazan Bank Limited ARA A1+ vis 7,439,332 24,106,176
Al Baraka Bank [Paketan) Limited A+ Al VIS 11,452 10,54%
Bank Islami Pakisian Lirmstad - Al PACRA R 2717

R 7y L P S TR e I

D b0 the Group's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after ghving due consideration to thelr strong
financial standing, managemant does not expedt non-performance by these counterparties on thair obligations to the Modaraba,
Accordingly, tha oredit risk is minimal,
(b} Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting &= financial obligations as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises
becauss of the peasibility that the Group could be required to pay it lisbiliies sadier than expected or difficully i raising funds be
rest commitments psocisted with financiel Babilities as they fall dus. The Group's sppreach to mensging ligudity s to ensune, B
lfar as possitle, that it will ahways have sulficent liguidty W meet ils Tabiites when dwe, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptalie losses or risking damage bo the Group's reputation. The Group manages liquidty risk by monitoring
Future cash flowes on @ day-to-day basis. The amount disclosed in the @bk are undisoounted cash Floms,

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

I Comtractual cash flows |
Maturity after
Canrging Maturity upto o year but Maore than thres
2025 amount OIE yoar upto thres YEars Yol
FRars
{Rupees)

Certificates of musharaka 173,375,000 41,500,000 104, 975,000 26,900,000 173,375,000
Creditors, accrued and other
liabiliti s 24,162,122 24,162,122 = = 24,162,122
misharaks 3,331,368 3,331,368 = = 3,331,368
Certificate of musharaka - matured
and payabls 2,800,000 2,800,000 = = 2,800,000
Unclaimed profit distributions 18,620, 240 18,620,240 = = 18,620,240

222,288,730 90,413,730 104,975,000 26,900,000 222,288,730
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| Contrachusl chsh Mows |
Maturity aftar
Carrying Maturity upbo one year but More than three
s armount a paar upto thres yaars Yo
years
{Rupees)
Certificates of musharaka 168, 40 (00 47,250,000 0,225,000 S, 525 000 168, 400,00]
Creditors, accrued snd other
liskilities 10,269,139 10,269,139 = = 10,269,139
Accrued prafit on cerlificates of
musharska 3,514,280 3,514,280 = = 3,514,280
Certificate of musharaka - matured
i Al 2, B, 000 2,800,000 = = 2,800,000
Uinclsimied prafit distributions 18,729 685 18,775 GRS - - 18,725, 6A5
203,733 104 B2 583,104 70,225 000 S0, 525,000 203,733,104

€)  Market risk

Market risk rmeans that the fair value or future cesh foss of a financal instrement will luchsate becase of changes i1 market prices
such as foreign exchange rates, inberast rates and eguity prices. The objective is o manage and conktrol market risk ssposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The currency risk, other price risk and profit rate msk associated with the
Group's business activities are stated as wnder;

(i} Currency risk

Currency Fsk s the risk that the far value of future Cash Mows of a financial irstrumeant will Mocuate due D changes in foregn
emchange rates The Group is exposed o currency risk whene trensactions are condwcbed in foregn ourrency.

A5 b the raporting date, iF Pakistan) Rupee depreciated ¢ apprecated by 1% against GBP with all other variables hedd constang, the
Group's profit before tax would hawe been lower | higher by Bs, 0,036,.97 million [2024: Mil) a5 a result of exchange gain /' (loss) on
transiation of foreign currency denominated financial Instrisments,

(i) Other price risk

Other price risk represents the fsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrement will fluctuate because of chanoes
in markat prices (other than those ansing from intercst rate g or currency sk}, whether those changes are caused by factors
spacific to the individual financial instrument or s issuer, o factors affecting ol similar financial Instrument traded in the markes.
Thare is other prce risk of changes In the fasr value of investment in mutual funds as a result of changes in the levals of net assat
value of units hald by the Group, As at Juna 30, 2025, had there been Increasa § decrease In net asset value by 1%, with all other
variables hedd constant, the profit before tax for the year and equity would have been highar § lower by Bs, 0.23 million {2034; Rs
0,21 mélion) and Rs. 0.17 million (2024: Rupees 0,15 million].

(i) Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the rsk that the walue of a financial mstrument will fuctuate due to changes i the market yield, The Group has
adopted appropriate policies to minimisa ks axposure to thes risk, At the reporting date, the profic rate profile of the Growp's
significant profit bearing financial instruments was as follows:

2025 2024
Financialassets e 1] oy —
Fixed rate
Murabaha fnancing 47,200,142 75,462,003
Shart term murabaha financing 4,791 668 .
51,991 810 75,462,003
Financial assets
Variable rake
Benk balancag HEE‘J':?H 3?|EBLB‘-‘D{H
BEI-!'E?E! E?IEM
Financial liabilities
Variable rate
Certificate of musharaks 173, 375 000 168 400,00
On statement of fnandal postion gap 1 265 513':' 01 ml
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 10 bases points n profit rates at the reporting date would have (decreased} J increased post tax profit for the pear by

the amounts shown balow, This analysis asswmes that all other variables remain corstant. The following information summarizes the
estimated effects of hypothetical increases and decreases in profit rates on cash flows from financial assets and liabéities that ara

subject to profit rate risk,
| 2025 || 2024 |
Increase Decrense Increase Decrease
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Cash flow sensitivity - varizble rate financlal assats 66,511 {66,511} 269,076 {269,076}
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate financlad llabdities (1,230,963) 1,230,963 {1,185,640) 1,664,000
et effect 11,164,452) 1,164,452 (926,564} 1,414,924

36.2 Recognized falr value measurements
{a) Financial agssets
Fair value hierarchy

Judgments and astimates are made In determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognized and meazsured at
fair value in these consolidated financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the nputs wed in determining
fair valua, the Growup has classified its financial instruments Bt the following three levels.

Leved 1@ The fair valee of fingncial instrements traded in active markets (such as publicly traged derivatives, and trading end
available for sale securities) & based on guated market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for
financial aecets held by the Group is the: current Bid price. These inttruments sne inchuded in level 1.

Lewed 25 Thee Fair vaue of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is

determined wsing valuation techaigues which madmioe the use of observable market data and rely as Bitle as possibla on entity-
specific estimates, IF all significant inputs required to fair valoe an instrument are obsenable, the instrument is included o lessl 2,

Leved 3: IF one or more of the significant inpuls is not based on abservable market data, the mstrument is inclisded in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.

Irvestment of the Group carried a8 Fair value ane categorized as Follows:

—20-Jyn-33 - -
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3 Total
Rupees
Assets
Shawt terrn investment
Fair vatus through profit or loss 23,434,916 = = 916
30-Jun-24
Lewal-1 Loval-2 Level-3 Total
Rupees:
Assets
Shart term investment
Fair vabue through profil or loss 21,308,669 & & 21 G69

There wiere mo transfers bebween various kevels of fair vaslue higrarcy during the year,
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wmsing chsininai o pidREi

The carrying value of all non-financial assets reflacted in these consolidated financial statermnents are approximate their fair
values. Fair value is determined an the basis of objective evidence at each reparting date,

Financial instruments by categories

Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Murabaha financing

Musharaka financing

Loan to employess

Long term deposits

Trade debtors

Advances and other receivables
Short term murabaha financing
Short term deposit

Acorued profit

Cash and bank balances

Shart kerm investment

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Certificates of musharaka

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Certificate of musharaka - matured and payable

Accrued profit on certificates of musharaka

Unclaimed profit distributions

2025 2024
-------- {Rupees) --------
| At amortized cost |

47,200,142 75462003
13,949,054 25,949,054
369,503 585,503
7,700 7,700
262,671,367 175,324,983
19,148,102 16,392,893
4,791,668 -
256,800 1,863,904
70,332 1,532,576

18,994,547 47,123,633
367,459,215 344,252 339

At fair value through profit or
loss

23,434,916 21,308,669

| At amortized cost |
173,375,000 168,400,000
24,162,122 10,289,139
2,800,000 2,800,000
3,331,368 3514, 260
18,620,240 18,739,665
222,288,730 203,733 104
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Reconciliation to the line items presented in the statement of financial position is as follows:

Total as per
Financial assets "n'a' m"""":ia' su#:;:m:lﬂ
Position
As at June 30, 2025 o (Rupees] ——
Assets as per statement of financial position
Fixed assets - 23,281,703 23,281,703
Intangible assets = 144,147 144,147
Long term imvestments - - -
Murabaha financing 47,200,142 - 47,200,142
Musharaka financing 13,949,054 o 13,949,054
Loan to emplayees 369,503 - 369,503
Long term deposits 7,700 - 7,700
Stock in trade - 12,475,079 12,475,079
Trade destors 262,671,367 = 262,671,367
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 19,148,102 15,808,359 34,956,461
Short term murabaha financing 4,791,668 - 4,791,668
Short term deposit 256,800 - 256,800
Accrued prafit 70,332 - 70,332
Sheoet term Investment 23,434,916 = 23,434,916
Taxation-net - 68,067,855 68,067,855
Cash and bank balances 18,994,547 = 18,994,547
390,894,131 119,777,143 510,671,274
Total as per
Financial Non-financial Statement of
liabilities liabilities Financial
Position
As at June 30, 2025 wrmmmnes [RUPEES) ===n====
Deferred income - 8,730,348 8,730,348
Certificates of musharaka 173,375,000 - 173,375,000
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 24,162,122 6,280,335 30,442,457
Accrued profit on certificates of musharaka 3,331,368 - 3,331,368
Certificate of musharaka - matured and payable 2,800,000 - 2,800,000
Unclaimed profit distributions 18,620,240 = 18,620,240
223,288,730 15,010,683 237,299,413
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Total as per
Financial assets wd’ ﬂml‘“
- Position
Az at June 30, 2024 smmm=mas {Rupees) ========
Assets as per statement of financial position
Fized assets - 13,102,420 13,102,420
Intangible assets - 205,924 205,924
Long berm investments - - -
Murabaha financing 75,462,003 - 762,003
Musharaka financing 25,949,054 - 25,949,054
Loan o employess 595,503 2 535,503
Long term deposits 7,700 - 2,000
Stock in trade - 24,102,663 24,102,663
Trade debltors 175,324,983 - 175,324,983
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 16,392,893 6,733,762 23,126,655
Short term murabaha financing - - -
Short term deposit 1,863,994 - 1,863,994
Accrued profit 1,532,576 = 1,532,576
Short term investment 21,308,664 - 21,308,669
Taxation-net - G, 106,437 G4, 106,437
Cash and bank balances 47,123,633 = 47,123,633
365,561,008 108,251, 206 473,012,214
Total as per
Financial MNon-financial Statement of
liabilities liabilities Financial
Position
As at June 30, 2024 ===s==== (RUpBES]) =====mn=
Deferred income = 15,101,882 15,101,882
Certificates of musharaka 168,400,000 - 168,400,000
Credibors, acorued and ather liabilities 10,289,139 5,150,378 15,439,517
Accrued profit on certificates of musharaka 3,514,280 3 3,514,280
Cartificate of musharaka - matured and payable 2,800,000 - 2, 800,000
Undlaimed profit distributions 1B,729,685 - 18,729,685
203,733,104 20,252,260 223,985,364
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3%, PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

39,1 The following information B based on un-sudibed financial information of the Staff Provident Fund for the year ended June
30, 2025 and Jume 30, 2024,

2025 2024
menensss [UPBESE) ========
Size of the funds - Total assets 11,446,855 10,163,135
Cast of investments 1,300,000 T, 00,000
Fair value of investments oul al Provident Fund 1,400,000 1,300,000
Percentage ol inwestments made 130 SEL
39.2 Details of fair value of investroents:
Bank balances 7,403,176 5,236,949
Advances to employees 2,643,679 3,526,186
Trvestment in sharia compliant certificate of musharaka 1400000
Al 446,858 10,183,135
2025 2024
40, NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES e (MumberE) ----—- o

The numbaer of employess during the year are a5 follows:
Mumber of employees - permanent

17 1%,
Average number of employees - permanent 16 16

2 1

2 1

Mumber of employess - contractual
Average number of employess - contractusl

41, GEMERAL
41.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unbess othenyise stated.

41.2 Certaln corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to comply with the
requirements of fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017, Following major reclassifications have been made during the

T
Description Reclassified from Reclassified to 2024
Balamoe
{ Rupees )
Creditors, accrued and other Short-term deposit = Provision for
Provision for doubtful recoveries liabilithes = others doubtful recoveries 1,100, 000
Shaort term deposits Long term deposits Short term deposits 256,800
Advances, prepayments and other
rizceivables - Sindh sales tax
Sindh sales tax receivable Sindh sales tax recenable rescenable 5,914 484

42, DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for ssue on 01 October 2025 by the Board of
Directors of the Modaraba Managerment Company.

For Paramount Investments Limited
(Growp Management Company)

CHIEF FIMAMCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA
Pattern of Shareholding
As On IWVOB2025

o= HAVING SHARES —--=

MO, OF SHAREHOLDERS From To SHARES HELD FERCENTAGE
27 1 100 BEO3 0. 040
140 L =00 51T 02503
o B 1080 148048 1.0798
420 100 5000 BT B.4354

] 5001 T30 517418 A.TR2E
48 00 15000 5AZ5E5 4.2750
2z 1500 20000 ATEE4 27308
15 200N 23000 ZIE241 21630
16 2500 20000 4420996 azize
g N 50 0G24 2.1803
B 25001 40000 304538 22087
4 400 45000 1689721 1.2309
4 45001 BODBO0 185748 1.3471
% 5000 55000 FOEAT 1,496
4 B&OON BODN0 ZaoTee 1.6734
5 0D ES000 190010 1.3780
B 500 oD 406983 28516
2 T TS0 145823 1.0583
4 THEOO B30 16 2242
a5 BODH BS000 PARESY 1.8034
& BEOH 100000 291138 2 BIAT
1 10000 105000 101132 0.7338
5 110001 116030 agi7az 2 478E
1 11500 120000 119723 0.BEa
1 125001 130000 10RTEG 0.8337
2 15000 155000 03436 22007
1 TR0 1ESH0 162834 11735
i 18500 150000 190000 1.3780
1 185001 200000 198000 1,4360
3 22500 2000 EATO0D 4.8824
1 240001 245000 244541 1.7735
i 2E00 2ES000 264105 1.8164
1 420001 425000 423471 30712
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1 AZH0A AT 470184 31128
1 SO0 SOS000 S0gR5 2507
1 1455001 1 00000 150000 1oaver
1 1805004 1BA0000 1806040 121153
1287 Coenpary Tobsl 13788416 1 BOUAB0G
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FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA

Calegory of Shareholders
As On I0062025

Particudrs Mo of Folio Balanca Share Parcaniage
DIRECTCAS AMND THEIR SPOUSE(S) AND MINDOR CHILDREM & 45112
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKIMNG AND RELATED PARTIES 4 1965768 14.2567
BANKS, DF| & MEF| 2 462 00034
GENERAL PLIBLIC (LOCAL) 1178 TARIHE Sr.23ze
GENERAL PUBLIC (FORIEGM) ar B4b1B 6.7B05
OTHERS g8 20H30F 21496
MODARABAS 1 01585 3 E407
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDHNG 5% OR MORE 2 1675436 11 4258

Company Total 1227 1378E416 O OO
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Notice of Annual Review Meeting

Motice iz hereby given that the Annual Review Meeting of Cerificate-Holders of First Paramount
Modaraba (FPM) will be held on Tuasday, 28 Oclobar 2025 at 12:00 pm at PIMA Housa, Room Mo.
201, 2nd Flogr, PECHS Community Hall, Block-2, PECHS, Shahrah-e-QOuideen, Karachi, to raview the
performance of the Modaraba for the year ended 30 June 2025,

On behalf of the Board

Syed Mudassir Ali

(Company Secratary)

Faramount Investmeants Limited
Managers of First Paramount Modaraba
06 October 2025

Karachi

Mobes:
1. Closure of Certificate Transfer Books

The cerificate transfer books zhall remain closed from Monday, 27 October 2025 to Tuesday, 28
October 2025 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the Ragistrar of First
Paramount Modaraba (FPM) i.a. THK Associates (Pvi) Lid., before the close of business hours on
Friday 24 Cctober 2025 will be treated as in time for the purpose of attending the Annual Review
heaseting.

2. Change of address

The certificate holders are advised to notify change in their address, if any, to the Share Reqgistrar, THK
Agsociates (Pvt) Lud, at Plot Mo-32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, DHA Phase VIl Karachi = 75500,
Telephone No: 021-111-000-322, Fax Mao: 021-35310191.

3. Participation in the meeting

To facilitate certificate holders, the Modaraba is holding this meeting physically and through video link
as allowed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. To attend the ARM through video
link, the members and thair proxies are requested to register themselves by providing the following
information along with their Mame, Folio Number, Cell Mo, and NMumber of Cerificates held in their nams,
& valid copy of CNIC (both sides) passport attested copy of board resoclution / power of attormmeay (in case
of corporate cerificate holders) through email with subject “Registration for FPM ARM™ at
s.mudassirali@fpm.com.pk by 15 October 2025:

Mame of Mamber | CNIC | Folio No./ Participant | Cell Mo/ Email 1D
{ proxy halders Mo Idf Account Mo, WhatsApp Mo.

The certificate holders who are registarad after the necessary verification shall be provided a video link
by the Modaraba on the said email address. The login facility will remain opean from start of the meating
till its proceedings are concluded. Members are therefore, encouraged to attend the AGM through video
link and by consalidating their attendance through proxies,
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A} For attending the meeting physically:

i In case of Individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder andfor the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Fegulations, shall authenticate his identity by showing his original CNIC or original passport
at the time of attending the Mesting.

i) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution ! power of attorney
with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of the Meeting.

B) For appointing proxies:

i) In case of individuals, the account holder and / or sub-account holder and their registration
details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above
reguiremeant.

i) The proxy form shall be wilnessed by bwo persons whose names, addresses and CMIC
numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

fii} Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnizhed with the proxy form.

iv) The proxy shall produce his original CHNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting,

vl in case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy
farm to the Company,

4. Availability of Audited Financial Statements on Modaraba's website

In terms of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan's (SECF) S.R.Q. 634 2014, the
Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2025 will also be placed on Modaraba's website,

5. Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through email

As per the directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (*“SECP) vide
S R.O.787(1)2014 dated 08 September 2014, companies are allowed the circulation of Audited
Financial Statements along with Motice of Annual Review Meeting Lo their certificate holders through
amail. Certificate holders who wish o receive Modaraba’s Annual Report via emall in future are
requested to fill the consent form (available at First Paramount Modaraba website) and return it
to our Share Reqgistrar at Plot Mo=-32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, DHA Phase VIl Karachi = 75500,
Telephone Mo: 021-111-000-322, Fax Mo: 021-35310191.

6. Unclaimed dividends

List of unclaimed dividend is available on Modaraba's website. Cerificate holders, who by any
reason, could not claim their dividends or collect their physical Modaraba certificate, are advised to
contact our Share Registrar THK Associates (Private) Limited, to claim (or obtain enquires regarding)
their unclaimed dividend or pending Modaraba Certificates, if any, Please note that in compliance
with section 244 of the Companies Act 2017, after having complated the stipulated procedures, all
dividends unclaimed for a period of three years, from the date due and payable, shall be deposited to
the credit of the Federal Government and in case of share/certificates, shall be delivered to the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
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FORM OF PROXY

ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING

I"We

of CDC A/C No. Folio Mo. being a
Cartificate Holder af First Paramount Modaraba, do heraeby appoint
Mr/Missits

CDC A/C No. Folio Mo. who is / are also a Certificale Holder of the
Modaraba, az my [ our proxy in my / our absence and o attend the Annual Review Meeting of the
Modaraba to be held on at PIMA House, 2nd Floor, Room Mo

201, PECHS Community Centre, Block-2, PECHS, Shahrah-e-Quideen, Karachi and at any
adiournment thereof in the same manner as |/ wea myself / ourselves would attend if persanally
prasent at such meeting.

Az witness myfour hands in this day of

Affix Revenue

Signature: Stamp of Rs. 5

Addrass:

CHNIC No.:
Mo, of Certificate{s) held:

(Mote: Signature should agree with the specimen Signature registered with the Modaraba's
Share Registrar).

Mote:

1. No Form of Proxy shall be valid unless duly signed along with revenue stamp and in case of
company should be executed under its common seal under signed by its authorized person,

2. This instrument appointing a proxy, duly completed, must be received at the registered
Office of the Modaraba at Suit Mo. 107-108, P.E.C H.5. Community Office Complex, Block 2,
P.E.C.H.5., Shahrah-e-Cuaideen, Karachi not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the
Annual Review Meeting.

3. Altested copies of the CNIC or the Passport of beneficial owners shall be furnished with the proxy
form.

4. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

5. In case of corporate entity, the Board's Reszolution and Power of attomey with specimen signature
of the nominee shall be furnished along with proxy form to the company,
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